
 
 
 

 
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  Contact: Elaine Huckell 

Scrutiny Officer 
Wednesday, 5 September 2018 at 7.30 pm  Direct: 020-8379-3530 
Conference Room, Civic Centre, Silver 
Street, Enfield, EN1 3XA 

 Tel: 020-8379-1000 
  
 E-mail: elaine.huckell@enfield.gov.uk 

 Council website: www.enfield.gov.uk 

 
Councillors : Derek Levy (Chair), Huseyin Akpinar, Tolga Aramaz, Susan Erbil, 
Gina Needs (Vice-Chair), Lee David-Sanders and Edward Smith 
 
 
Education Statutory Co-optees: 1 vacancy (Church of England diocese 
representative), Simon Goulden (other faiths/denominations representative), Tony 
Murphy (Catholic diocese representative), Alicia Meniru & 1 vacancy (Parent 
Governor Representative). 
 
Enfield Youth Parliament Co-optees (2) 
Support Officer – Susan O’Connell (Governance & Scrutiny Officer) 
Elaine Huckell (Governance & Scrutiny Officer) 
 

 
AGENDA – PART 1 

 
1. WELCOME AND APOLOGIES   
 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
 Members of the Council are invited to identify any disclosable pecuniary, 

other pecuniary or non-pecuniary interests relevant to items on the agenda. 
 

3. CABINET MEMBER FOR ENVIRONMENT, COUNCILLOR GUNEY 
DOGAN   

 
 This is a discussion item. 

 
4. FOSTERING & ADOPTION SERVICES IN ENFIELD  (Pages 1 - 40) 
 
 To receive a report from Debbie Michael, Adoption Manager. 

 
5. ENFIELD SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN'S BOARD (ESCB) ANNUAL 

REPORT  (Pages 41 - 74) 
 
 To receive a report from Geraldine Gavin, Independent Chair Safeguarding 

Children’s Board. 
 

Public Document Pack



6. ENFIELD ANNUAL INDEPENDENT REVIEWING OFFICERS (IRO'S) 
REPORT 17/18  (Pages 75 - 96) 

 
 To receive a report from Maria Anastasi, Service Manager for Safeguarding 

& Quality Service. 
 

7. ENFIELD ANNUAL LOCAL AUTHORITY DESIGNATED OFFICER (LADO) 
REPORT 17/18  (Pages 97 - 110) 

 
 To receive a report from Maria Anastasi, Service Manager for Safeguarding 

and Quality Service. 
 

8. CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE STRATEGY  (Pages 111 - 134) 
 
 To receive a presentation from Sally McTernan, AD Special Projects. 

 
9. WORK PROGRAMME 2018/19  (Pages 135 - 138) 
 
 To review and agree the Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme for 

2018/19. 
 

10. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS   
 
 To note the dates of future meetings as follows:  

 
Provisional Call-Ins  
 
Thursday 13 September, 2018  
Thursday 11 October, 2018  
Thursday 8 November, 2018  
Thursday 6 December, 2018  
Thursday 20 December, 2018  
Thursday 7 February 2019  
Tuesday 12 March 2019  
Tuesday 26 March, 2019  
Thursday 11 April, 2019  
 
Please note, the business meetings of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee will 
be held on:  
 
Wednesday 7 November, 2018  
Tuesday 12 February, 2019  
Wednesday 3 April, 2019  
 
The Overview & Scrutiny Budget Meeting will be held on:  
Tuesday 15 January, 2019  
 

11. EXCLUSION OF PRESS & PUBLIC   
 
 To consider, if necessary, passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the  

Local Government Act 1972 excluding the press and public from the meeting  



for the item of business listed in Part 2 of the agenda on the grounds that it  
will involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in those  
paragraphs of Part 1 Schedule 12A to the Act (as amended by the Local  
Government (Access to Information)(Variation) Order 2006), as are listed on  
the agenda (Please note there is not a Part 2 agenda).  
 
 

 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
1. BACKGROUND 

See Appendices attached to this report 

1.1 The Fostering and Adoption Teams 

 
REPORT TO: OSC 
 
DATE:  5th September 2018 
 
REPORT TITLE:  Overview & Scrutiny Committee Report 
 
 
REPORT AUTHOR/S: 
Debbie Michael, Fostering & Adoption/SG Service Manager 
Email: Debbie.Michael@enfield.gov.uk 
Telephone:  020 8379 8480 
 
 
PURPOSE OF REPORT:  
 
This report updates the Scrutiny Panel on the work of the Fostering and Adoption 

Services since August 2017.  It is a requirement of the National Minimum 

Standards that Members receive regular reports on the work of the Fostering and 

Adoption Services. The reports attached as appendices provide comprehensive 

updates and information relating to the good work undertaken by the Fostering 

and Adoption Services and provide statistics relating to the recruitment of foster 

cares and adopters, as well as Orders relating to children placed with adopters 

and special guardians.  

Our fostering and adoption recruitment strategy is reflective of the need to focus 

on families that can meet our children’s complex needs. 

Currently we have 15 children placed with prospective adopters awaiting Adoption 

Orders. 

We have 134 foster families (including family & friends and Reg. 24 (temporary 

approval carers) and 141 looked after children placed). 43.5% of all our looked 

after children are placed with in house foster carers.  

Recently we successfully developed a business plan to increase our fostering 

second and subsequent child rate to match our first child rate, in line with other 

local authorities in a competitive market. 

 

Page 1 Agenda Item 4

mailto:Debbie.Michael@enfield.gov.uk


2 
 

The Fostering and Adoption Services are based at Triangle House.  Both 

services are staffed with experienced practitioners and managers.  The 

proximity to the Looked After Children’s Teams continues to be helpful in 

promoting good planning for children in care.  Staff training and development 

needs are met both through the Consortium and Enfield’s Training and 

Development Service which offers a comprehensive programme.  Team 

members are required to attend training to ensure their ongoing 

development needs are met, as well as maintaining their social work HCPC 

registrations.  In addition to the ongoing training that is provided throughout 

the year, staff members across all children’s teams are invited to attend the 

annual Social Work Conference which always has an excellent attendance 

rate. 

Enfield is a part of the North London Adoption & Fostering Consortium 

(NLAFC) made up of Enfield, Barnet, Camden, Hackney, Haringey and 

Islington and the boroughs work together, sharing training, recruitment 

activities and fostering and adoptive placements for children across the six 

boroughs.  Shared planning and funding has allowed the consortium 

boroughs to deliver more cost effective and innovative services to foster 

carers, adopters and special guardians across the six boroughs.  The 

consortium meets regularly at both a strategic Heads of Service level as well 

as at an operational level. 

 

 

The areas of specialism within Enfield fostering service are 2-fold: the 

recruitment and assessment of foster carers; and the support and 

development of foster carers. 

 

All foster carers have a named supervising social worker following their 

approval who provides regular supervision and who supports the carers’ 

professional development.  A comprehensive training and development 

programme is available for all carers and this has been designed to offer the 

flexibility to meet the needs of the foster carer workforce.  In addition to day 

time taught courses, learning opportunities are also available on weekends 

and evenings, as well as on-line courses.  It has been acknowledged that our 

foster carers are being asked to look after children with increasingly complex 

needs and we are currently looking at training courses to build resilience 

amongst our carers in managing our children’s complex needs. 

Page 2



3 
 

 

 

The Adoption Service has always had three main functions: to recruit and 

assess prospective adopters; to family find and match suitable adopters for 

our children where adoption is the plan; and to support adoptive families. 

This service now has the additional responsibility for assessing and 

supporting Special Guardian carers and has been re-named the Adoption 

and Special Guardianship Service. Special Guardians are carers identified 

from a child’s extended family or friends network, formally assessed and 

approved and who share parental responsibility with the child’s birth parents. 

It provides a child with an alternative permanent family while stopping short 

of the severing of all legal ties with the birth parents, as happens in adoption. 

 

The independent fostering and adoption panels continue to play an important 

role in providing quality assurance and their members consider and agree 

recommendations on the suitability of applicants wishing to foster or adopt.  

The Agency Decision Maker within the local authority will make the final 

decision on approval based on the information and recommendations 

provided by the panels.  Joint panel training between panels members and 

fostering and adoption team members is held 2-3 times a year which is 

extremely useful to ensure knowledge on legislation and practice issues are 

shared. 

 

1.2 Regionalisation of Adoption Agencies (RAA) 

Currently, work is in place to progress the DfE’s vision for Regionalisation of 

Adoption Services.  The six boroughs in the current consortium, will become 

the Regional Adoption Agency for North London. Intensive planning is 

currently underway to confirm the organisational arrangements and changes 

required to develop the new legal entity.  This is a very significant project 

bringing together professionals from social care, HR, finance and IT from the 

different boroughs.  It is anticipated that the project will be completed in April 

2019. 

 

1.3 Recruitment 

Fostering recruitment is robust with the numbers for 2018/19 likely to 

consolidate recent improvements.  In 2017-18, we assessed and approved 18 

foster families (an improvement on the previous year when 12 foster families 

Page 3



4 
 

were approved).  In 2017-18 Enfield had the highest number of approvals of 

any of the consortium partner boroughs.  We are anticipating a similar or 

higher number of approvals by the end of this financial year this current 

financial year.  

 
In 2017-18, Enfield assessed and approved 11 adoptive families which is an 

improvement on the previous year when only 4 adoptive families were 

approved.  Again, Enfield had the highest number of approvals in 2017-18 

compared to its consortium counterparts.  Efforts to recruit and assess 

adopters are ongoing with a particular focus on families that can meet the 

complex needs of our children.   

 

There has been an increase in the number of SGOs granted over the last 2-3 

years. In 2016-17, 42 SGOs were granted (32 on children previously in care 

and 10 on children in need).  In 2017-18, 32 SGOs were granted (19 on 

children previously in care and 13 on children in need).  This year to date, 13 

SGOs have been granted with more expected by the end of the financial year. 

We currently have 7 special guardianship assessments being completed with 

numbers of applications continuing to rise. 

 

In 2017-18, 16 Adoption Orders were granted, the highest in the consortium.  

We are anticipating 14 Adoption Orders on children by the end of this financial 

year, including four sibling groups.   

 

The aim is always to increase our pool of foster carers and adopters to meet 

the demand of the children in need of fostering and children where adoption is 

the plan.   

 

The team’s Recruitment and Marketing Officer is continuously looking for new 

and innovative ways in which we can recruit foster carers for Enfield.  Raising 

the profile of fostering for Enfield is crucial and efforts to do this have 

included: 

 “Myth busting” messages being sent to prospective foster carer groups. 

 Information events across various locations in Enfield and the 

Hertfordshire border (i.e. larger supermarket stores, Enfield theatres, 

libraries, local hospitals and the Civic Centre).   

Page 4



5 
 

 Double page adverts in the local papers featuring current foster carers 

and case studies 

 Posters and electronic board throughout the borough. 

  Our marketing materials have been redesigned to attract more interest 

from carers for sibling groups and older children  

 

 Maximising Technology:   

The fostering and adoption pages on the Council website have been updated 

and the friendly URL www.enfield.gov.uk/fostering  has been resurrected.  

Our visual element to the website has been improved and a fostering and 

adoption microsite has been installed for this purpose.  

 Our successful media campaign last year resulted in regular flow and 

increased traffic to websites and social media channels.  

 

Spikes to the adoption site corresponded to event marketing activity and 

there were notable spikes to the fostering site centre around the parent and 

child video promotion.  There was a similar pattern for our Facebook 

channels and increases in likes that corresponded directly with boosted 

adverts. 

Work is currently underway to develop electronic applications through the 

Children’s Portal. 

 

2. ISSUES AND CHALLENGES 
 

 The number of adoption allowances granted has remained stable over the 

past few years.  Since the last OCS report in August 2017, the adoption 

allowances have increased by only one from 72 to 73.  The payment of an 

ongoing adoption allowance is discretionary, and we are successfully 

using one off payments in their place.  

 However, what continues to be a financial challenge is the number of 

SGO allowances being paid as there is no legal discretion either over the 

payment of these allowances or their level.  

 The fostering allowances are comparable with other local authorities and 

recently, a review of the second and subsequent child rate element was 

aligned with the first child rate as part of a recruitment and retention 

initiative. This was necessary to bring Enfield in line with the other local 

authorities in the consortium in a competitive market and to avoid using 

Page 5

http://www.enfield.gov.uk/fostering


6 
 

costly independent fostering agencies.  There is a national shortage of 

foster carers which is keenest in London. Recruiting foster carers is highly 

competitive and many local families are still choosing to foster with 

independent fostering agencies. Our marketing plan highlights the 

benefits of fostering for Enfield but a constant focus on recruitment is 

crucial.  In particular, we want to recruit more foster carers for siblings, 

older children and Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children. 

 

   In adoption, we need prospective adopters who can meet the ethnic and 

religious backgrounds of our children and adopters who are able to 

consider children with developmental uncertainties.    

 

 Nationally, all adoption agencies are required to implement the DfE’s RAA 

plan which is an enormous task.  The current uncertainty for staff working 

in adoption is daunting.  However, Enfield has the advantage of belonging 

to an established six-borough consortium partnership and will be able to 

influence the development and decision-making in delivering the RAA.  

 

 Any operational risks are minimised by attention to good practice in 

recruiting and preparing foster carers and adopters, good preparation for 

children, attention to detail during the introduction and transition process, 

and continuing support post placement. 

 
 

3. NEXT STEPS 
 

 To recruit and assess 15+ foster carers in 2018-19  

 

 To focus on a recruitment campaign that encourages foster carers to 

foster sibling groups using the second and subsequent child fee recently 

implemented as an incentive. 

 
 

 To help shape the implementation the of the new Regional  Adoption 

Agency for North London by April 2019 to ensure that the new 

arrangements achieve the anticipated improved outcomes for this group of 

children,  

 

Page 6



7 
 

 

 

 
4. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the Overview and Scrutiny Panel note the content of this report and embedded 
attachments:  
 
Adoption Annual Report 2017-18. 
 

Adoption Annual 

Report 2017-18.pdf
 

Fostering Annual Report 2017-18 
 

Fostering Annual 

Report 2017-18.pdf
 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



1 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1. BACKGROUND 
Enfield Safeguarding Children Board has a statutory duty to prepare and publish an 
Annual Report which describes how our partners safeguard vulnerable children and 
young people. 
 

REPORT TO: OSC 
 
DATE: 5th September 2018  
 
REPORT TITLE: Draft ESCB Annual Report 
 
REPORT AUTHOR/S: Angela Bent, Angela.bent@enfield.gov.uk  
 
PURPOSE OF REPORT:  
To update the committee on the Draft Enfield Safeguarding Children Board Annual Report 
2017 – 18.  

 
SUMMARY:  
The ESCB annual report 2017/18 is an overview of the progress being made to safeguard 
and promote the welfare of children and young people across Enfield during the past year.   
 
The report is split in two parts: 

 Part 1 – “At a glance” summary of activities 

 Part 2 is a more detailed report  
 

The main report is broken into the following sections:  
Section 2 of the report sets the context for safeguarding children and young people, by 
highlighting statistical information about Enfield  
 
Section 3 sets out the local governance and accountability arrangements for the ESCB 
and structures in place to support the ESCB to do its work effectively. It also provides 
information on the new Safeguarding Arrangements that will be introduced in 2018/19 
through the Children and Social Work Act 2017. 
 
Section 4 highlights some of the achievements and the progress that has been made in 
the last year as well as reporting on the work undertaken across the partnership  
 
Section 5, provides an overview of specific responses to safeguarding concerns, focusing 
on Vulnerable Young People and Early Help 

 
Section 6 highlights the lessons the ESCB has identified through its Learning and 
Improvement Framework and provides an overview of the multi-agency audits undertaken, 
Serious Case Reviews and child death.  
 
Section 7 describes the range and impact of the multi-agency learning and development 
training provision and describes the communication activity undertaken by the LSCB. 
 

Lastly, Section 8 sets out the priorities ESCB will take forward into 2018/19.  

Page 41 Agenda Item 5

mailto:Angela.bent@enfield.gov.uk


2 
 

Our primary responsibility is to provide a way for the local agencies that have a 
responsibility in respect of child welfare, to agree how they will work together to 
safeguard and promote the welfare of children and to ensure that they do so 
effectively. 
 
2017/18 has been a busy year for the Safeguarding Board, despite changes and 
challenges that at times have impacted on the Boards ability to progress work, 
agencies across the partnership have continued to demonstrate strong commitment 
to the Board and its activities.  The Board remains committed to a programme of 
scrutiny, monitoring and, quality assuring the quality of safeguarding activity across 
Enfield, and this programme of robust analysis and challenge will continue to ensure 
that children and young people who are at risk of exploitation or abuse are identified 
and responded to speedily and effectively, as we move forward and embrace the 
opportunities the new statutory guidance offers. 
 
Report highlights 

 The ESCB considered what the future local multi-agency safeguarding 
arrangements could be following the legislative changes introduced the 
through the Children and Social Work Act 2017.  There will be statutory 
changes with the abolishing of LSCBs and the introduction of new 
safeguarding arrangements, changes to the Serious Case Reviews and the 
introduction of Safeguarding Practice Reviews and the role of the National 
Safeguarding Practice Review Panel. There will also be changes around the 
Child Death reviews and the expectations that the number of deaths reviews 
should increase to between 80 – 120. Therefore, indicating a need for cross 
border Child Death panels. Over the next 12 months will see the partnership 
agreeing and publishing new local arrangements.  

 

 No Serious Case Reviews have been commissioned this year, however one 
SCR that had commenced in the previous year was published and will remain 
on the website for a year. The Board commissioned one local learning case 
review, the learning from this will be disseminated across the partnership and 
included in next year’s report. The reviews have been completed in a timely 
manner, learning was identified for partners to build on understanding the 
vulnerabilities of young asylum seekers and the importance of information 
sharing out of hours. 

 

 The Quality Assurance Sub Committee continued to lead and scrutinise the 
ESCB learning and improvement framework. This involved leading on Section 
11 interviews, case audits and reviewing multi-agency performance data to 
develop an understanding on how well the partnership identified and 
responded to safeguarding issues. The members scrutinised single agency 
audits and shared learning across organisations. Overall safeguarding 
performance data provides reassurance. There are gaps in data from 
partners agencies, there will be a focus on updating the dataset in 2018/19. 
The progress on multi-agency cases audits was impacted on by departure of 
the Service manager, practice and partnership. There will be a renewed focus 
on increasing the number of multi-agency case audits.  

 

 This year the ESCB expanded its CSE group and established a new 
Vulnerable Young People Group, chaired by the Head of Community Safety.  
This has enabled partners to focus on understanding the issues that pose a 
risk to young people and how they impact on their lives - in a local context. 
The group has looked at a range of issues from Radiclisation to County Lines 

Page 42



3 
 

and continued a specific focus on CSE. Overall it has identified that the 
complex vulnerabilities of young people frequently overlap. It was agreed that 
to approach these as separate need is less effective than considering the 
complexity to a young person needs as a whole. To support the partnership in 
understanding how these issues intersect and how we should locally respond, 
there will be a focus on developing an overarching Vulnerable Young Peoples 
Strategy: “Protecting Young People from Exploitation and Abuse”. 
 

 This year the ESCB and the ESAB progressed the merger of their respective 
Learning and Development subcommittees. There have been some 
challenges in the engagement of adults safeguarding, which has improved 
now the group is chaired by the adults safeguarding board manager. The 
financial resourcing and delivery of training are different and this year, there 
has been an acknowledgement of the differences, but a recognition that there 
are many areas of opportunity to join up learning and embed a Think Family 
approach.  Moving forward the partners will strengthen the joint multi-agency 
learning and development offer and ensure despite who commissions training 
it will be available to all areas regardless if their primary focus is children or 
adults.  

 

2. ISSUES AND CHALLENGES 
The Children and Social Work Act 2017, has introduced legislative changes 
including the abolishing of LSCBs and identifying The Local Authority, CCG and 
Police as the 3 safeguarding partners responsible for  

 Agree on ways to co-ordinate their safeguarding services;  

 Act as a strategic leadership group in supporting and engaging others; and  

 Implement local and national learning incl. serious child safeguarding 
incidents  

Over the next year as decisions are made on what the new arrangements look like, 
it will be important this this is done without breaking the strengths of the current 
partnership working and ensuring the involvement of schools who are not mandatory 
partners. 

 
Failure to deliver robust new set of arrangements would have a detrimental impact 
upon the Council’s reputation. 

 

 

3. RECOMMENDATIONS 
No specific recommendations. The report is circulated to Members for their 
information.  

 
 
4. NEXT STEPS 
The final report will be circulated to ESCB members for comments and presented to 
the ESCB meeting on 17th September 2017 for sign off. 

 

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



 

ESCB annual summary 2017 -18 - At a glance 
What did we do? What did it tell us? Next Steps  

Considered what the future local multi-agency 
safeguarding arrangements could be following the 
legislative changes introduced through the 
Children and Social Work Act 2017 

 
 

 

There will be statutory changes with the 
abolishing of LSCBs and the introduction of new 
safeguarding arrangements, changes to the 
Serious Case Reviews and the introduction of 
Safeguarding Practice Reviews and the role of the 
National Safeguarding Practice Review Panel. 
 

There will also be changes around the Child Death 
reviews. There is an expectation that child deaths 
need to be reviewed over a population size that 
gives a sufficient number of deaths to be analysed 
for patterns, themes and trends of death.  
 

The changes offer flexibility and provide 
opportunities to streamline strategic boards & 
reduce duplication. 

Embed statutory changes outlined in Working 
Together 2018 
 
Over the next 12 months will see the partnership 
agreeing and publishing new local arrangements.  
 

To have a sufficient number of deaths to analyse 
consideration will need to be given to having 
cross borough Child Death Overview Panels.  

No new Serious Case Reviews were commissioned 
 

Published one Serious Case Review which started 
in the previous year 
 

Commissioned one local learning case review, the 
learning from this review will be disseminated 
across the partnership and included in next year’s 
report 

The SCR was completed in a timely manner.  
Learning: 

• Practitioner involvement could be better 
in the review process 

• We should build on understanding the 
vulnerabilities of young asylum seekers 

• The importance of information sharing 
out of hours 

• Domestic abuse and disguised 
compliance 

The group will focus on developing further 
models to disseminate and embed lessons 
learned. 
 

Monitor action plans –with the view of providing 
an analysis of the impact of the learning on multi-
agency practice 

The Quality Assurance Sub Committee continued 
to lead on and scrutinise the ESCB learning and 
improvement framework  
 

A range of multi and single agency audits were 
conducted over the year. Including a strategy 
meetings audit which identified the non-
attendance of some partners to meetings.  
Partners were written to by the Independent Chair 
with a reminder of their statutory role. 

Continuous reporting of safeguarding 
performance data has provided reassurance that 
practice standards are being met. There is 
recognition more data is needed from some 
partners to enable a fuller understanding on how 
the partnership are safeguarding.  
 

There has been a significant improvement in 
partner contributions to strategy meetings since 
communication from the Independent Chair. 
 

Of the audits completed they provided an 
understanding of strengths and areas for 
improvement. 

Update the dataset to capture multiagency 
intelligence 
 
Review multi-agency early help and early 
intervention arrangements.  
 
Renew focus on increasing the number of multi-
agency case audits. 

The ESCB expanded its CSE group and established 
a new Vulnerable Young People Group, chaired by 
the Head of Community Safety  
 

Partners focused on understanding the issues that 
pose a risk to young people and how they impact 
on their lives - in a local context 
 

The group has looked at a range of issues from 
Radiclisation to County Lines and continued a 
specific focus on CSE.  

It was identified that the complex vulnerabilities 
of young people frequently intersect and overlap. 
 

It was agreed that approaching these as separate 
needs is less effective than considering the 
complexity of a young person’s needs. 

To support the partnership in understanding how 
these issues intersect and how we should locally 
respond, there will be a focus on developing an 
overarching Vulnerable Young Peoples Strategy: 
“Protecting Young People from Exploitation and 
Abuse”. 

 

The ESCB and the ESAB progressed the merger of 
their respective Learning and Development 
subcommittees. 
 
Delivered a targeted multi -agency training 
safeguarding programme appropriate to the needs 
of staff across all agencies and sectors; enabling 
them to effectively promote the safeguarding of 
children.  
 

 
 
 

There have been some challenges in the 
engagement of adults safeguarding, which has 
improved now the group is chaired by the adults 
safeguarding board manager. 
 

The financial resourcing and delivery of training 
are different and this year, there has been a 
recognition that there are many areas of 
opportunity to join up learning and embed a 
strengths-based Think Family approach. 
 

The agency percentage breakdown attending 
training has remained consistent, with 
participants from Education, Children Social Care, 
health and VCS as the highest attendees. 

The partners will strengthen the joint multi-
agency learning and development offer and 
ensure despite who commissions training it will 
be available to all areas regardless if their primary 
focus is children or adults.  
 

Recognising the different learning models there 
will be a focus on embedding more online and 
bite size learning opportunities.  
 

Next year there will be a focus on increasing the 
attendance of partners whose attendance was 
lower than expected.  

2017/18 has been a busy year for the Safeguarding Board, despite changes and challenges that have at times impacted on the Board’s ability to progress 
work, agencies across the partnership have continued to demonstrate strong commitment to the Board and its activities.  The Board remains committed to a 
programme of scrutiny, monitoring and, quality assuring the quality of safeguarding activity across Enfield. This programme of robust analysis and challenge 
will continue to ensure that children and young people who are at risk of exploitation or abuse are identified and responded to speedily and effectively, as we 
move forward and embrace the opportunities the new statutory guidance offers. 

Page 45

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2017/16/contents/enacted
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/working-together-to-safeguard-children--2
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/working-together-to-safeguard-children--2


 

Page 46



 

1 
 

 

                                                                                              

 

 

 

Annual report 2017 – 18 
 

 

 

P
age 47



 

2 
 

Contents 
Foreword by Independent Chair ...................................................................................................................................................................................................... 3 

1. Introduction ............................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 4 

2. Enfield Context ......................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 5 

3. About us: Governance and Structure ...................................................................................................................................................................................... 7 

4. Changes and Achievements ................................................................................................................................................................................................... 11 

5. Safeguarding in different contexts......................................................................................................................................................................................... 12 

6. Learning and improvement .................................................................................................................................................................................................... 18 

7. Training, Learning and Development ..................................................................................................................................................................................... 22 

8. Priorities and challenges for next year and beyond .............................................................................................................................................................. 25 

Appendix:  1 ................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 27 

 

 
  

P
age 48



 

3 
 

Foreword by Independent Chair  
 
As the Independent Chair of the 2017/18 Enfield Safeguarding Children Board I am pleased to write some introductory notes to what will be the final Annual 
Report of the current Safeguarding Children arrangements. The formal requirement placed on each Local Authority to coordinate and host a statutory 
Safeguarding Children Board began in 2006 (Children’s Act 2004) and this has now been removed in new legislation approved in 2017 (Children and Social 
Work Act 2017). We are all now focusing on planning for the new arrangements when the Metropolitan Police, Enfield Clinical Commissioning Health Group 
and Enfield Local Authority all jointly share the responsibility for protecting children and young people across the Borough. 
 
I encourage the reader to let the report speak for itself, and I wish to conclude this current phase of the existing ESCB by thanking all the various staff right 
across the existing partnership for their dedication, commitment, energy and focus on reducing harm to the children and young people of Enfield. 
 
Several changes over this recent year are worth noting, we waved Goodbye to Grant Landon who had been an effective and energetic Business Manager over 
his three year stay in Enfield. Our very effective lay members Irene Ridley and Rick Jewell, who represented the local community in Enfield have both moved 
on to other activities and the Local Authority Administrative Unit was reduced in numbers when a colleague Aileen Ingram retired during Autumn 2017. Judy 
Dennis and Lisa Tait have between them continued to coordinate the ESCBs activities during 2017-18 and I want to Thank them for all the activities 
undertaken on behalf of the partnership.  

Finally a sincere Thank You to all current and previous colleagues who have contributed to the formal full ESCB meetings, the active sub-groups, the various 
Learning Events and Training Courses, as well as other Children’s Safeguarding focused activity. We have had ongoing contact with various children and young 
people’s networks across the Borough and I Thank them for their helpful and often challenging comments, suggestions and ideas. We also extend our thanks 
to Cllr Ayfer Orhan and Cllr Glynis Vince, who were supportive and regularly contributed to the ESCB in 2017 / 18. 
 
The new Multi-Agency Safeguarding Arrangements are being worked on and shaped over the next few months. Do keep an eye on the ESCB website and 
Twitter pages to contribute to a newly invigorated and effective children’s partnership network.  Safeguarding the children and young people of Enfield is a 
serious responsibility undertaken with pride and commitment, we need to make sure this continues and improves in the new Multi-Agency Safeguarding 
Arrangements.  
 
Geraldine Gavin 
Independent Chair 
ESCB 
August 2018. 

P
age 49

https://new.enfield.gov.uk/enfieldlscb/
https://twitter.com/EnfieldSCB


 

4 
 

1. Introduction  
 

 Enfield Safeguarding Children Board has a statutory duty to prepare 
and publish an Annual Report which describes how our partners 
safeguard vulnerable children and young people. 

 

 Our primary responsibility is to provide a way for the local agencies 
that have a responsibility in respect of child welfare, to agree how 
they will work together to safeguard and promote the welfare of 
children and to ensure that they do so effectively. 

 

 The ESCB supports partners as system leaders, challenges and holds 
them to account.  We want to create conditions to develop a 
learning culture driving best collaborative practice for good 
outcomes. Our principles are: partnership working, family focus, a 
commitment to early help, and operating a learning culture.  

 

 Section 2 of the report sets the context for safeguarding children 
and young people, by highlighting statistical information about 
Enfield  

 

 Section 3 sets out the local governance and accountability 
arrangements for the ESCB and structures in place to support the 
ESCB to do its work effectively. It also provides information on the 
new Safeguarding Arrangements that will be introduced in 2018/19 
through the Children and Social Work Act 2017. 

 

 Section 4 highlights some of the changes and achievements and the 
progress that has been made in the last year as well as reporting on 
the work undertaken across the partnership  
 

 Section 5, provides an overview of specific responses to 
safeguarding concerns, focusing on vulnerable young people and 
Early Help 
 

 Section 6 highlights the lessons the ESCB has identified through its 
Learning and Improvement Framework and provides an overview of 
the multi-agency audits undertaken, Serious Case Reviews and child 
death.  

 

 Section 7 describes the range and impact of the multi-agency 
learning and development training provision and describes the 
communication activity undertaken by the LSCB. 

 

 Lastly, Section 8 sets out the priorities and business plan the ESCB 
will take forward into 2018/19.  

 
The Annual Report 2017/18 demonstrates the extent to which the functions 
of the Enfield Safeguarding Children Board, as set out in the national 
statutory guidance ‘Working Together to Safeguard Children’ (March 2015) 
are being effectively fulfilled. 

 

P
age 50



 

5 
 

2. Enfield Context  
 
Local context 

 The London Borough of Enfield is London’s most northerly and fifth 
most populous borough. The overall population is currently 
approximately 333,00 and this is projected to rise over the coming 
years.  
 

 There are currently approximately 84,200 (aged under 18) living in 
Enfield, making up 25% of the borough’s population.  

 
 Enfield has a relatively young population with the number of 

children and young people aged 0-15 representing approximately 
23% of the total population (compared to a London average of 
20.5%)  

 

 Enfield is the 13th most deprived borough nationally and the 5th 
most deprived in London.1 

 

 Enfield continues to experience significant changes to its population 
which includes an increase in overall numbers and a continued 
increase in the number of children in Enfield who affected by 
poverty.  

 

 There is a high level of migration into Enfield both from other parts 
of the United Kingdom and from other countries, particularly from 
Eastern Europe and Africa. 
 

 
 

Safeguarding – Enfield in numbers in 2017/18 

 The average number of contacts to Children Services per month was 
1673 (4.3% reduction).  
 

 As of the 31st March 2018 Cheviots (part of the Joint Service for 
Disabled Children) social workers had 177 open cases; there were a 
further 370 children with disabilities receiving a service. 
 

 242 children were subject to a child protection plan at the end of 
the year. significantly lower than the 2016/17 figures 
 

 347 children were Looked after (LAC) at the end of year (a lower 
rate, than the national average, and our statistical neighbours,  
 

 Of the 347 LAC, 63 are UASCs, rates in Enfield remain higher than 
the national threshold. 
 

 In 2017-18 there were 977 early help assessments completed. 
 

 136 children and young people identified as affected by children 
sexual exploitation (CSE), this is an increase on previous years and 
an indicator of increased awareness. 
 

 0 SCRs commissioned and 1 published on the ESCB website. 
 

 5 Out of Borough SCRs were contributed to by local Enfield agencies 
 

 726 places were taken up from the ESCB targeted training 
programme 
 

 26 child deaths were reviewed in 2017/18. 

                                                           
1
 Data from The Income Deprivation Affecting Children Index (IDACI) measures the proportion of all children aged 0 to 15 living in income deprived families 

P
age 51



 

6 
 

 
Signs of safety – Social Work Model  

 There is increased interest nationally into ‘What Works?’ when 
working in a child and family context. Signs of Safety (SoS) is one of 
several practice frameworks being used in the UK by local 
authorities and being evaluated through the English Innovation 
Project (DoE).  
 

 The SoS implementation journey started in the autumn of 2015 and 
since then a tremendous amount of progress has been made 
towards fully embedding the model within children’s services and 
among partner agencies in Enfield.  
 

 The Signs of Safety coordinator facilitates group learning and 
directly supports individual front-line staff with safety planning and 
multi-agency case conference.  

 

 The Board has continued to lead on and steer the direction of the 
Signs of Safety across the borough.  

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

P
age 52



 

7 
 

3. About us: Governance and Structure  
Partners considered what the future local multi-agency safeguarding arrangements could be following the legislative 

changes introduced through the Children and Social Work Act 2017 

 Each local area is required by Law to have a Local Safeguarding 
Children Board. The LSCB is a statutory body established in 
legislation (Children Act 2004) and works according to national 
guidance ‘Working Together to Safeguard Children 2015’. 

 
 ESCB is made up of statutory and voluntary partners. These include 

representatives from Health, Education, Children’s Services, Police, 
Probation, Children and Family Court Advisory and Support Service 
(CAFCASS), Youth Offending, the Community & Voluntary Sector as 
well as two very active Lay Members, who meet four times a year.  

 
 Our main role is to coordinate what is done locally to protect and 

promote the welfare of children and young people in Enfield and to 
monitor the effectiveness of those arrangements to ensure better 
outcomes for children and young people. The effectiveness of ESCB 
relies upon its ability to champion the safeguarding agenda through 
exercising an independent voice.  

 
 Safeguarding children is everybody’s responsibility. Our purpose is to 

make sure that all children and young people in the borough are 
protected from abuse and neglect. Children can only be safeguarded 
from harm if agencies work well together, follow procedures and 
guidance based on best practice and are well informed and trained. 

 
LSCB functions  

 Developing policies and procedures for safeguarding and promoting 

the welfare of children in the area of the authority, including policies 
and procedures in relation to:  

o The action to be taken where there are concerns about a 
child’s safety or welfare, including thresholds for 
intervention;  

o Training of persons who work with children or in services 
affecting the safety and welfare of children;  

o Recruitment and supervision of persons who work with 
children;  

o Investigation of allegations concerning persons who work 
with children;  

o Safety and welfare of children who are privately fostered;  
o Cooperation with neighbouring children’s services 

authorities and their Board partners;  
 Communicating and raising awareness  
 Monitoring and evaluating the effectiveness of what is done by the 

authority and their Board partners individually and collectively to 
safeguard and promote the welfare of children and advising them on 
ways to improve;  

 Participating in the planning of services for children in the area of the 
authority 

 Undertaking reviews of serious cases and advising the authority and 
their Board partners on lessons to be learned.  

 Undertake functions related to child death  
 The functions of the ESCB are progressed by the Boards 5 Sub 

Committees. More information can be found (link to website) 

P
age 53

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2017/16/contents/enacted


 

8 
 

LBE Chief Executive  

Accountable for the 
effectiveness of the ESCB 

 

Responsible for appointing 
or removing the ESCB Chair 

 

Holds the ESCB to account 
for the effectiveness fo the 

ESCB  

Executive Director of People 

  Director of Children 
Services 

Responsible within the local 
authority for improving 

outcomes for children, local 
authority chidlren's social 
care functions and local 

cooperation arrangeemnts 
for children services  

Enfield Safeguarding Children 
Board  

Chair: Geraldine Gavin 

Serious Case Review  

Chair: Geraldine Gavin 

Vulnerable Young People 

Chair: Andrea Clemons 

Quality Assurance  

Chair: Christina Keating  

Learnng and Dvelopment 
(joint with SAB)  

Chair: Bharat Ayer 

Child Death Overview Panel  

Chair: Stuart Lines  

Business Group  

Chair: Geraldine Gavin 

Lead Members 

Hold Children Services to 
account  

Strategic links to  

Health and Wellbeing Board 

Safer Strong 
CommunityBoard 

Enfield Safeguarding Afdults 
Board 

Enfield Targeted Youth 
Engagement Board 

P
age 54



 

9 
 

Scrutiny and Challenge 

 Geraldine Gavin has been the Independent Chair of the ESCB since 
2010, she is tasked with leading the Board and ensuring it fulfils its 
statutory objectives. 

 

 The Board demonstrates a culture of positive challenge and scrutiny 
which is evidenced in the Board and Subcommittee minutes.  The 
Chair is accountable to the Chief Executive of the London Borough 
of Enfield and meets regularly.  The Chair also regularly meets the 
Executive Director of People and the Director of Children Services. 

 

 It is important to remember that the ESCB does not commission or 
deliver direct frontline services. Whilst the board does have not 
have the power to direct other organisations it does the power to 
influence and hold agencies to account for their role in 
safeguarding. 

 

ESCB financial arrangements 

 All LSCB member organisations have an obligation to provide LSCBs 
with reliable resources (including finance) that enable the LSCB to 
be well organised and effective. Resources include staff time and 
additional support such as attending Board meetings, co-chairing 
the subgroups which support the work of the Board, and 
contributing to Serious Case Reviews. 

 

 In 2017/18 the Board had a budget of £173,375.00, which was 
made up of contributions from our partners. Approximately 53% of 
the total budget was contributed by the London Borough of Enfield 
with the CCG as the next highest contributor.   

 

 Staffing costs were lower than originally projected. This was due to 
a reduction in ESCB support team following the departures of the 
CDOP coordinator post and the Service Manager for Practice and 
Partnership.  

The Children and Social Work Act 2017  

 Following the Wood Review and the Children and Social Work Bill in 
2016, new safeguarding arrangements were passed into law 
through the Children and Social Work Act 2017.  

 

 Provisions within the Children and Social Work Act 2017 will replace 
Local Safeguarding Children Boards (LSCBs) with new local 
safeguarding arrangements, led by three Safeguarding Partners and 
supported by relevant agencies. It also places a duty on new Child 
Death Review partners to review the deaths of children normally 
resident in the local area.  
 

 In October 2017 the Department of Education (DfE) consulted on 
the draft ‘Working Together to Safeguard Children 2018’ guidance 
which lays down in much more detail the new safeguarding 
arrangements. The final version was published on 4th July 21018. 

 

 Alongside the ‘Working Together’ the DfE has released statutory 
guidance on transitional arrangements.  
 

 This document for Local Authorities, Police, Health and LSCBs 
provides guidance on the arrangements that should operate as part 
of the transition from LSCB’s to Safeguarding Partners and Child 
Death Review Partners.  

 

 Safeguarding Partners are identified as:  
o Local Authorities  
o Chief Officers of Police  
o Clinical Commissioning Groups 

 Child Death Review Partners are identified as:  
o Local Authorities  
o Clinical Commissions Groups  

 

P
age 55



 

10 
 

 Safeguarding Partners will identify the relevant agencies required to 
support local safeguarding arrangements and will include agencies 
that are currently members of the LSCB.  

 

 The guidance also describes the transitional arrangements which 
should be followed during the transition from the system of Serious 
Case Reviews to the new national and local review arrangements.  

 

 Following publication Safeguarding Partners have up to twelve 
months to agree safeguarding arrangements. These arrangements 
must be subject to independent scrutiny. Enfield Safeguarding 
Children Board response has been to ensure that business is 
conducted as usual; that partners continue to come together 
regularly to discuss local challenges and how best to respond to 
them and that Training and Learning, including the dissemination of 
key points from local and national Serious Case Reviews, continues 
to be prioritised and undertaken effectively.  We will continue to 
carry out all of our statutory functions, until the point at which 
safeguarding partner arrangements begin to operate. 

 

Relationship with other boards 

 The ESCB works has a relationship with other strategic boards.  
Each board has a specific focus: 

 

 Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) - The HWB assumed its full 
statutory powers in April 2013 and Geraldine, our chair is a 
participant observer, increasing the influence of the Board by 
strengthening the relationship with this key strategic group. Clearer 
lines of accountability are in place and ESCB report regularly to the 
HWB and continue to make sure key safeguarding issues are 
addressed. 

 

 Safeguarding Adults Board (SAB)- The ESCB Chair is a participant 
observer on the Safeguarding Adult Board and meets regularly with 
that board’s Chair, Christabel Shawcross to ensure there is dialogue 
and mutual understanding of priorities and initiatives. Last year the 
Learning & Development subcommittees of the two boards merged 
to improve and enhance the training programmes of both boards 
and to co-commission and co-deliver training where relevant. 
 

 There are also strong links with Enfield’s Safer and Stronger 
Communities Board (SSCB) and Targeted Youth Engagement Board 
(ETYEB) 

 

 There will be statutory changes with the abolishing of LSCBs and the 
introduction of new safeguarding arrangements, changes to the 
Serious Case Reviews and the introduction of Safeguarding Practice 
Reviews and the role of the National Safeguarding Practice Review 
Panel. 
 

 There will also be changes around the Child Death reviews and there 
is an expectation that the number of death reviews increase. 
Therefore, indicating a need to consider cross border Child Death 
panels. 
 

 The changes offer flexibility and provide opportunities to streamline 
strategic boards & reduce duplication. The ESCB will:   

o Continue to engage and challenge these partnerships where 
appropriate to safeguard and promote the welfare of 
children in Enfield.  

o Embed statutory changes outlined in Working Together 
2018 

o Over the next 12 months will see the partnership agreeing 
and publishing new local arrangements. 

P
age 56

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/working-together-to-safeguard-children--2
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/working-together-to-safeguard-children--2


 

11 
 

4. Changes and Achievements   
 CSE Awareness Campaign & ‘Chelsea’s Choice’  In June and July 2017, 

40  performances of Chelsea’s Choice a powerful and thought-
provoking play, focusing on the challenges and dilemmas many 
young people face was commissioned. The play was performed in 
almost all of our secondary schools and also to a range of 
professionals including elected members. Also presented to CCG 
safeguarding conference to 150 health practitioners in July 2017. It 
was very well received with much positive feedback from schools 
where the play prompted a great deal of discussion and learning 
opportunities. Impact: Helps young people gain a better 
understanding of the devastating impact that sexual exploitation 
can have on a young person's life and to provide them with some 
skills and knowledge to be able to protect themselves from this 
form of abuse.   
 

 The Missing from Home, Care, Education and / or Health protocol 
was developed in August 2016 and updated in May 2017. All 
agencies working with children who are missing from home, care, 
education or health will implement this protocol and ensure their 
staff are aware of it. The protocol is designed to ensure accurate 
data recording and information sharing which supports local 
working arrangements between the relevant agencies involved in 
developing this.  For the first time our Missing Protocol covers 
guidance on what to do when working with children who go missing 
from Education and Health as well as from Home and Care. Impact: 
The purpose of the protocol is to assist practitioners across all 
agencies to develop a robust response to children and young people 
who are missing. This includes preventing the child suffering harm 
and if necessary, recovering them to a place of safety as soon as 
possible 

 

 Domestic abuse – new Violence Against Women and Girls (VAWG) 
Strategy, published in July 2017, which has been produced for the 
multi-agency partnership (see attached). This sets out clear 
objectives to continue to develop practice and knowledge on 
domestic abuse for practitioners and people who live, work and 
study in Enfield.  
 

 Police  
o Child Abuse Investigation Team (CAIT) referrals desk 

relocated to sit within the Single Point of Entry.   
o The planned restructure of the 32 borough police services to 

12, will see Haringey & Enfield being brought together. 
 

 North Middlesex Hospital  
o Safer Sleeping Week 13th-17th March - NMUH held a one-

week event in line with the Lullaby Trust’s campaign to raise 
awareness around safer sleeping. This included teaching for 
midwifery staff and others and a stall in the foyer to involve 
the public 

 

 Enfield CYPS 
o In 2017, as part of World Mental Health Day, ECYPS held a 2 

day “Mind Kind” event with local schools, over 400 young 
people attended, and the event was oversubscribed with a 
further 500 wanting to attend. The workshop included 
giving teachers and young people the tools to look after 
their mental wellbeing. 

 

P
age 57

http://www.alteregocreativesolutions.co.uk/chelseas-choice/


 

12 
 

5. Safeguarding in different contexts 
Partners focused on understanding the issues that pose a risk to young people and how they impact on their lives - in a 

local context 

Preventing radicalisation and extremism  

 Responsibility for the Prevent agenda in Enfield sits within the 
Community Safety Unit (CSU). There is a strong focus on 
safeguarding individuals from supporting or becoming involved in 
terrorism.  
 

 There is a structured programme of support to schools and other 
organisations to offer support to those who are deemed to be at 
risk. 

 
 A key element of Prevent is the Channel programme, which receives 

concerns about vulnerable individuals and the needs are assessed 
along with any risks that the police may highlight suggesting 
terrorism or radicalisation concerns.  
 

 Recent Home Office figures showed that nationally around 63% of 
individuals discussed at a Channel panel were aged under 20 years, 
similarly in Enfield we find that a higher proportion of referrals are 
about young people.  

 

 The past year has been a very active and innovative period for 
Prevent in Enfield.  There were significant changes in the way the 
threat from terrorism to the nation has evolved over the year.  

 

 At the beginning of the year, the focus was working to reduce the 
influence of radicalisers and mitigate the risk of vulnerable people 
travelling to areas of conflict. By the end of the year the focused 
moved away from stopping people travelling to conflict areas to 
working on a programme where the country is starting to receive 
returnees from these conflict areas and how do we support their 
needs.  
 

 By the end of 2017 Prevent training had been successfully delivered 
to over 70% of secondary schools and nearly 65% of Primary 
schools. To strengthen the local, Prevent programme two extra staff 
were recruited funded by a grant from the Home Office.  

 
 In 2017 an anti-radicalisation workshop was piloted for year 6 

students at the age they will be preparing to move over to 
secondary school.   
 

“A very engaging presentation that helped the children build on their 
knowledge of this subject. It also improved their understanding of influential 
peacemakers - Ghandi, King, Parkes etc.” - Primary School Teacher.   
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

P
age 58



 

13 
 

Child Sexual Exploitation  

 Child Sexual Exploitation is a form of Child Abuse and causes 
children and young people serious harm. The Enfield CSE operating 
protocol has been developed by the Enfield Safeguarding Children 
Board (ESCB) to assist practitioners from all agencies to make 
decisions and to access timely support when working with children 
and young people who are at risk of, or known to be experiencing 
Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE). There are several key documents 
designed to support practitioners working with CSE which should be 
referred to.  These documents along with a range of supporting 
tools and documents can be found on the ESCB website on the CSE 
webpage. 
 

 A key aspect of Enfield’s approach to tackling CSE is our multi-
agency Child Sexual Exploitation Prevention (CSEP) Team which was 
established in July 2015. The multi-agency team was initially part of 
the Youth and Family Support Service (YFSS) and was moved into 
Children’s Social Care 2017. The team is made up of Social Workers, 
Police officers, specialist workers from Safer London, youth workers 
and a CSE coordinator.  
 

 The team have recently commissioned an organisation to support 
young women to exit gang culture.  
 

 The MASE and CSEP team cross reference data regularly. Annually 
the CSEP team collate an annual profile to build up the picture to 
aide understanding and as far as possible the scope and nature of 
child sexual exploitation (CSE) in Enfield, with a view to informing 
the strategic and multi-agency efforts to tackle CSE and other 
associated vulnerabilities affecting the young people in the Borough 

 
 
 

 During the year 136 young people were identified as either 
experiencing or being at significant risk of CSE. This figure is higher 
than the last full year analysis where 112 young people were 
identified in 2016-17. 

 

 There is a larger span of referrals by age in comparison with 2016 - 
2017.  All children on the list were aged between 9 and 18 years at 
point of referral. The most common ages for referral are 14 and 15, 
with 83% of children being aged between 13 and 16 years at the 
time they were referred which is a slight increase to 78% in 2016-
2017, although there has been a decline in referrals for 17 and 18-
year olds. 
 
 

 

P
age 59

https://new.enfield.gov.uk/enfieldlscb/wp-content/uploads/2017/06/ESCB_CSE_Protocol_March_2017-2.pdf
https://new.enfield.gov.uk/enfieldlscb/wp-content/uploads/2017/06/ESCB_CSE_Protocol_March_2017-2.pdf
https://new.enfield.gov.uk/enfieldlscb/professionals-volunteers/child-sexual-exploitation-resources-and-tools/
https://new.enfield.gov.uk/enfieldlscb/professionals-volunteers/child-sexual-exploitation-resources-and-tools/


 

14 
 

 
 Of the136, the majority are female, there was a decrease in the number 

and percentage of boys identified. There were 99 girls (88%) and 13 
boys (12%). We know that nationally there is an under reporting of boys 
who are victims of CSE.  

 

 As in 2016-17 the largest identified ethnic group is White (48% similar to 
45% in 2016/17.). This includes those identified as “All other White”. 
Further significant cohorts are identified Black (31% of cohort in total).  

 

 Lower numbers of Asian, Indian and Turkish children on the list 
highlights a potential area of under reporting. This issue was also 
identified in 2016-17.  

 108 of the 136 children (79%) are reported as living at home with 
parents or relatives. 

 Very few are missing education (11 are NEET). 
 
 

 The majority live in 4 post codes where there is known gang 
activity however very few are known to the gang partnership 
as affiliated with gangs.  

 

 Since March 2018, the names of the young people known to 
the CSEP team are checked with those who are believed to be 
involved in County Lines this will be reported on next year. 

 

Multi-Agency Sexual Exploitation (MASE) group  

 The MASE is a strategic multi-agency meeting comprising of a 
variety of senior staff from across the LSCB partnership and has 
been in operation since 2013. The meetings are police led and 
are co-chaired by the Detective Inspector responsible for Public 
Protection and Service manager for Practice and Partnerships.  
  

 The MASE meets monthly, recent developments in MASE 
include a stronger shift in focus toward a more strategic 
approach in line with London-wide policy. The meeting 
considers children who are identified as “high risk” and shares 
information to identify themes, locations, trends, cross border 
issues with discussion about high risk individual cases and 
perpetrators in order to inform disruption activity. As of April 
2018, this group will include those young people involved in 
County lines2 

 49 young people were discussed at the MASE meeting.   In 
comparison, 36 young people were discussed at MASE 
meetings in 2016-17. This is a slight increase in the number of 
cases being presented to MASE from 32% to 36%. 

                                                           
2
 County Lines is the term used to describe the approach taken by gangs originating from large urban areas, who travel to locations elsewhere such as county or coastal 

towns to sell class A drugs. Gangs typically recruit and exploit children and vulnerable young people to courier drugs and cash through deception, intimidation, violence, 
debt bondage and/or grooming. Typically, users ask for drugs via a mobile phone line used by the gang. Couriers travel between the gang’s urban base and the county or 
coastal locations on a regular basis to collect cash and deliver drugs.  Young men and women may be at risk of sexual exploitation in these groups.   

P
age 60



 

15 
 

         

Missing 

 The correlation between missing from home and care and CSE 
remains significant (over 50% of the cohort).  There will be new 
arrangements for debriefing young people who return home from 
1st October 2018 which will strengthen the quality of the debriefing 
interviews and ensure the push/pull factors are understood and 
risks addressed within care planning.    

 

 The graphs demonstrate the proportion of children on the CSE list 
who are known to have been reported missing on at least one 
occasion. 

 

  
 
 
 

 

 The Missing Children Risk Management Group (MCRMG) was 
established in July 2015. The group is made up of representatives 
from all relevant agencies to enable and promote an enhanced 
service to ensure children and young people, who are or have a 
history of going missing from home, local authority care or 
education, are identified, safeguarded and supported. 
 

 Whilst not an ESCB subcommittee the work of this multi-agency 
group There are strong links between related groups including the 
Multi-Agency Sexual Exploitation (MASE) group, the Gangs 
Partnership Group and a newly established County Lines group 
which sits within the Youth Offending Unit (YOU).   
 

 This group has been instrumental in facilitating a positive 
partnership with other agencies; mainly due to the capacity for 
open forum discussions with multiple agencies with safeguarding 
responsibilities.   
 

 One of the most successful outcomes had been the improved 
partnership with colleagues from the Police and the ability to have 
police checks conducted on CME and missing cases discussed as 
part of MCRMG. 
 

 ECPAT in 2017–2018, work began with the national charity ECPAT 
on their innovative Partnership Against Child Trafficking (PACT 
project). The project offered a thorough case file audit of cases 
where there have been concerns primarily around child trafficking. 
The audit identified good practice particularly in relation to CSE and 
missing and areas for development in relation to understanding 
risks and links between trafficking and County Lines.  

                                                          

Not 
report

ed 
Missin
g, 68, 
61% 

Report
ed 

Missin
g, 44, 
39% 

CSE Missing Episodes 
2016-17 

 

P
age 61



 

16 
 

• Enfield was the 4th London borough for victims of Serious Youth 
Violence, Gang, Serious Youth Violence and exploitation is a complex 
multi-faceted problem and there are no simple answers, 
professionals and the community need to work together to deliver a 
holistic response that deals with the issue and its causes and this is 
why partnership and community involvement is a key aspect to 
respond to these issues. 
 

• The Local Children’s Safeguarding Board, The Safer Strong 
Communities Board, the Health and Well Being Board and the 
Enfield Targeted Youth Engagement Board all work together and 
ensure that Serious Youth Violence and our response are all a key 
area of focus. 

 
• An Elected Member’s task group was established in June 2015 

focussing on CSE, in December 2017 the Council agreed to changing 
the scope to closely reflect the VYP sub-committee of the ESCB. The 
members task group meets four times a year offering strong 
leadership, oversight and scrutiny for the work undertaken to tackle 
exploitation and other associated vulnerabilities across the 
borough.  The Cabinet member for Children’s Services is invited to 
all meetings. 

 

 Given the progress made on tackling CSE in Enfield and given the 
growing understanding nationally and locally of the complex, often 
intertwined issues that young people face and how they can impact on 
young person’s life it was proposed and agreed in 2017 that the good 
work is built upon and expanded as part of a new Vulnerable Young 
People group. The new group includes a focus on:  

o CSE 
o Criminal exploitation and County lines 
o Gang activity in relation to young people  
o A sharpened focus on Trafficking and Modern Slavery  
o Radicalisation and the Prevent agenda  
o Children & Young People involved in or at risk of Harmful 

Practices (including Female Genital Mutilation, Forced Marriage 
and Honour Based Abuse) 

o Young people who are in abusive relationships, at risk of or 
experiencing Domestic Abuse.  
 

 There is already significant work addressing these issues being 
undertaken in the borough. The new Vulnerable Young People (VYP) 
subcommittee does not attempt to replace or replicate the work of 
these groups but links closely with them to ensure that there is robust 
communication and closely allied work programmes. We will: 
 

 To support the partnership in understanding how these issues intersect 
and how we should locally respond, there will be a focus on developing 
an overarching Vulnerable Young Peoples Strategy: “Protecting Young 
People from Exploitation and Abuse”. 

 
                                                    

  

 
 

 

P
age 62



 

17 
 

Female Genital Mutilation  
• Female Genital Mutilation (FGM) is a form of child abuse and 

violence against women and girls (VAWG).  
 

• Enfield VAWG strategy focuses on safeguarding and states that FGM 
is a crime under the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 
2014  

 
• A needs assessment in 2014 estimated that more than 2,800 

women and girls were at risk in Enfield. This is likely to have been an 
overestimate. The Iris clinic opened in August 2015 at North Mid. 
Only one case of an Enfield girl has been reported to Ofsted. There 
has been no prosecution.   
 

• The Enfield Safeguarding Children Board established a 
multidisciplinary group in 2014 in response to an increasing 
understanding of FGM and the need for a more coordinated 
approach to tackling it and providing support. The key actions from 
this were to continue working with local communities to raise 
awareness of the issue and of the local services available. There is 
also an ongoing programme of training for social workers and 
health professionals that includes advice on the types of FGM, data 
on countries that practice FGM and local implications, health issues 
related to FGM, cultural and religious reasons behind the practice, 
legislation on FGM and support services. In recognition of the 
mental and physical impact FGM has on health Enfield Health & 
Wellbeing Board now oversees work in this area. 

 

Early Help  
• The board has closely monitored the development of the Enfield 

Family Resilience Strategy which is the basis for the local response 
to Early Help. The new model will be based on a Hub system. There 
will be one Children’s Centre Hub, with a number of satellite sites 
across the borough. The 3 agencies forming the Family hub at 
inception will be Children`s centres, Change & Challenge (developed 
as Enfield’s response to the Government’s Troubled Families 
programme) and Parent Support Unit. 
 

 In 2017-18 there were 977 early help assessments completed the 
outcome of which was: 

o 470 families supported with a range of interventions.  
o 164 families were stepped down from early help targeted 

services and received ongoing support from universal or 
community services. 

o 278 families continue to receive low level early help 
support.  

o 46 cases stepped up to social care. 
o 8 families moved out of the borough.  
o 11 families did not want to engage with early help support 

services. 
 

 Board members have offered scrutiny, challenge and direction as 
the strategy has developed. The ethos of the strategy is that we 
want all our children to be safe, confident and happy, with 
opportunities to achieve through learning and reach their full 
potential as they become adults. 

 

 
 

 

P
age 63



 

18 
 

6. Learning and improvement  
Published one Serious Case Review which started in the previous year 

Commissioned one local learning case review 
Performance data headlines 

 The ESCB continually monitors the quality, timeliness and 
effectiveness of multi-agency practice through the multi-agency 
dataset. Where gaps are identified, implications for the LSCB are 
considered and any agreed actions are monitored. 

 

 Referrals to Children Social Care have fallen 4110, from 4154 
(16/17) 
 

 In April 2017, the SPOE was restructured, social workers were 
replaced with managers. This has directly contributed to the 
reduction in SPOE contacts, partners contacting the SPOE for case 
discussions are speaking directly to managers helping them to 
decide the appropriate pathway for cases. 
 

 In 2017/18 there was a drop in the timeliness of assessments (just 
over 61% of Child and Family Assessments had been authorised 
within 45 days). During this time there was increased staff turnover 
and caseloads were high 
 

 The number of Social Care referrals to CAMHS is up.  Self-harm 
referrals (0-13yrs) are recorded differently. SAFE get the 13+ year-
old referrals. Significant changes have taken place in CAMHS, which 
is now divided into generic CAMHS, SAFE (Service for Adolescents 
and Families in Enfield) and SCAN (learning difficulties). 

 

Multi-agency audits 

 Monitored partners compliance to section 11 audit. The Section 11 
audit process included responses from a range of agencies and 
challenge interviews have taken place with most agencies. A Section 
11 action plan is monitored through the QA subcommittee. 
 

 A strategy meetings audit identified the non-attendance of some 
partners to meetings.  Partners were written to by the Independent 
Chair with a reminder of their statutory role. There has been 
significant improvement in the partner contribution to meetings 
since communication from the Independent Chair. 

 

Single agency audits 

 Single agency audits were monitored by the Quality Assurance 
group including: 
 

  North Middlesex University Hospital domestic abuse audit 
(maternity). Audit findings: All women are screened at booking and 
again during pregnancy for domestic abuse. Challenge: There is 
sometimes difficulty in getting immediate support for a woman who 
presents at the hospital and discloses domestic abuse. Findings 
were shared with the Domestic Violence Strategy Group. 
 

 Children Centres case file audit. Audit findings: Children’s centres 
currently use paper-based files, which can hinder sharing of 
information.  The plan is to move to shared access of the Early Help 
module; the same system used by Education.  There will be 
quarterly monitoring, with an ability to readily track children’s 
history and progress. 

P
age 64



 

19 
 

Serious Case Reviews 

 Serious Case Reviews are published on the ESCB website. This year 
the Board published 1 Serious Case Reviews in October 2017.   
Outcomes and findings feed into all structures to promote a culture 
of continuous learning and improvement across the partner agencies 
of the LSCB.  

 

 Child YT:  A tragic case of a 17-year-old who took his own life just 
hours after arriving in this country in the summer of 2016. The 
report can be found here. Key themes: Vulnerability of young 
asylum seekers, Availability of interpretation services for foster 
carers, Information sharing with foster carers out of hours 
 

 One local learning review was started in 2017- 18 focusing on a 
baby who sustained injuries whilst in care of parent and concerns 
around domestic abuse and disguised compliance.  

 

 The LSCB continues to implement the recommendations from 
Serious Case Reviews. Action plans are monitored by the SCR sub 
committee and reviewed by the LSCB Board. Learning is shared 
following serious Case Reviews publication to contribute to the 
professional development of staff and improve their understanding 
of local safeguarding concerns and themes.  

 
For more information on Serious Case Reviews here  
 

Domestic Homicide Reviews 

 A domestic homicide Review learning event was held in January 
2018 for adults ‘and children services.  
 
 

 Continuous reporting of safeguarding performance data has 
provided reassurance that practice standards are being met. There 
is recognition more data is needed from some partners to enable a 
fuller understanding on how the partnership are safeguarding.  
 

 A range of multi and single agency audits were conducted over the 
year, of the audits completed they provided an understanding of 
strengths and areas for improvement. 

 

 Local and serious case reviews have been completed in a timely 
manner and action plans monitored.  

 

 Partners will strengthen the learning and improvement framework 
by: 
o Update the dataset to capture multiagency intelligence 
o Review multi-agency early help and early intervention 

arrangements.  
o Renew focus on increasing the number of multi-agency case 

audits. 
o Focusing on developing further models to disseminate and 

embed lessons learned. 
o Monitor action plans –with the view of providing an analysis of 

the impact of the learning on multi-agency practice. 
 

 
 
 
 

P
age 65

https://new.enfield.gov.uk/enfieldlscb/professionals-volunteers/serious-case-reviews/
https://new.enfield.gov.uk/enfieldlscb/professionals-volunteers/serious-case-reviews/


 

20 
 

Child Death 

 The Child Death Overview Panel share their key learning from child 
deaths. They monitor and challenge agencies for the completion of 
recommended identified actions and publish a separate annual 
report.  
 

 Between April 2017 and March 2018 CDOP received notifications 22 
child deaths (death of a person under 18 years of age)  

 

 26 children were reviewed in 2017/18, of the 26 cases, 14 cases 
were from previous year 2016/17. 
 
 

 Modifiable factors were found in 4 cases.   Recommendations were 
made in 4 cases.   
 

 The number of deaths reported over the last 3 years has been fairly 
stable 
 

 Of the 26 cases reviewed 14 were of males, 12 of females. 14 
deaths were unexpected, 11 cases were referred to the coroner, 7 
post-mortems were undertaken, 3 inquests held. 
 

 13 cases were of ‘white’ ethnicity’ (50%), 6 ‘Black African, Caribbean 
or Black British’ (24%), 2 of ‘Asian’ (8%) and 3 ‘not known’ (12%)3.    
 
 

 Only seven children were living in the parental home at the time of 
death.   
 

 Learning Disabilities Mortality Review Programme (LeDeR) is a 3-
year project led by NHS Improvement and the University of 
Bristol.  All deaths of people with learning disabilities from age 4+ 
should be reviewed. 2 deaths have been reported to LeDer in 
2017/18.  
 

 eCDOP came into use with one-year funding from NHS England. 
 

 There will also be changes around the Child Death reviews next 
year. There is an expectation that child death need to be reviews 
over a population size that gives sufficient number of deaths to be 
analysed for patterns, themes and trends of death. This suggests 
there will be a need to consider cross border Child Death panels 
 

 Find out more information about Child Death Reviews here.  
 

 

                                                           
3 Population data between censuses are always projections and therefore subject to error but this compares to the general population in which 
approximately 40% of the population is ‘white’ and 17% Black African, Black Caribbean or Black other.  Again, caution should be used in the interpretation 
of this data as numbers are small  
 

P
age 66

https://new.enfield.gov.uk/enfieldlscb/professionals-volunteers/child-death-overview-panel-cdop/


 

21 
 

Inspections 
In April 2017 Enfield Children Services volunteered to take part in a pilot 
inspection for Ofsted’s new Inspection of Local Authority Children’s Services 
(ILACS) framework. The overall effectiveness was rated Good.  The inspection 
findings in relation to early help found that services are not yet as developed 
and joined up as they might be which has had the effect of increasing demand 
on children’s social care. The full report can be found here . 
 
During the year BEHMHT- CQC Review of Mental Health services for children 
and young people -General findings were that there was strong partnership 
working, and any gaps were already identified by the service. How Early Help 
can be managed is a national concern; there are also national issues around 
limited bed spaces for specialist inpatient care 

 

Allegations against staff or volunteers 

 The role of the Local Authority Designated Officer (LADO) is 
set out in the “Working Together to Safeguard Children” 
guidance. In Enfield, the role of the LADO is undertaken by the 
Head of Safeguarding and Quality Service (SQS) who has 
responsibility for overseeing investigations, alerting senior 
council officers to allegations of a serious nature and making 
referrals to the Disclosure and Baring Service.  
 

 In addition to leading on investigations, the service offer 
advice and guidance when there may be concerns about a 
person’s conduct and when the threshold for a formal 
investigation has not been met.  

 

 During the year there was a total of 62 allegations which met 
the threshold for formal LADO involvement was 62.  

 

 22 (approximately 35%) of the allegations were substantiated 
 

 In addition to the 62 allegations, there have been 
approximately 80 consultations with the LADO, where the 
threshold for formal LADO intervention had not been met. 
 

 The number of allegations has increased by just under 25% 
this year and the number of substantiated ones has also 
increased significantly. These figures would suggest that the 
LADO intervention has been appropriate and measured. 
 

 You can read more information about the work of the LADO 
and related data in the Annual LADO report on the ESCB 
website. 

 

P
age 67

https://new.enfield.gov.uk/enfieldlscb/wp-content/uploads/2017/08/Enfield_ILACS_pilot_inspection_report.pdf


 

22 
 

7. Training, Learning and Development  
The ESCB and the ESAB progressed the merger of their respective Learning and Development subcommittees. 

 ESCB offered 10 different topics in 2017/18. The training 
programme this year has had a strong focus on training and 
awareness-raising in relation to Child sexual exploitation (CSE). A 
grant of £15,570 from The Enfield Strategic Partnership Fund was 
used to offer all Enfield secondary schools a hard-hitting theatre 
production Chelsea`s choice. This was successful in raising 
awareness of CSE amongst 11 to 16-year olds. 
 

 Continued to work with Safer London Foundation to provide training 
and awareness raising in relation to CSE. The ESCB has continued to 
deliver targeted training sessions for specific professionals. 
Professionals benefiting from this training include, Social Workers, 
Police officers, and Community Safety unit staff, Pupil Referral Unit 
staff and Health Visitors and School Nurses.   
 

 There was a continued focus on embedding Signs of Safety via 
workshops for all Enfield and multi-agency staff.   
 

 A County Lines workshop was held in August 2017 where 135 
professionals across Enfield attended. The session was delivered by 
Police colleagues from Met Police as well as officers here in Enfield. 
The focus was to raising awareness and a better understanding of 
the issue of County Lines. 
 

 Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking. Every Child protected against 
Trafficking (ECPAT) provided 3 days of training at Enfield to explore 
in depth the subject of modern slavery, child trafficking and 
exploitation and how children missing is inter linked 

 A total of 726 places were taken up from the ESCB targeted training 
programme, which included a full training programme for 
designated leads in school. 
 

 This year’s course was targeted to focus on areas of practice 
prioritised by the Board with learning from local and national case 
reviews being fully integrated into the training material 
 

 There has been very good engagement from the Education sector 
this year with 105 people attending events. This is, to some extent 
explained by the large number of Signs of Safety and a new course 
Single Point of Entry which aimed to increase practitioners 
understanding on what happens when they make their referrals. 
 

 There has also been very strong attendance from Children’s Social 
Care, which is a positive step. Consistently, feedback from courses is 
positive about the multi-agency nature of ESCB courses and the 
input and attendance of social care staff is particularly valued 
 

 Attendance from Probation colleagues and Police has fallen, which 
is probably reflective of the various changes that have taken place 
in that sector this year.  
 

P
age 68



 

23 
 

 An important focus has been strengthening the ESCB Learning & 
Development sub-committee which is now joint with the 
Safeguarding Adults Board (SAB) equivalent committee. This was in 
response to recognition by both boards that there is overlap in the 
training needs of both workforces and the importance of thinking of 
the family as whole. 

 
The course was concise, effective and delivered the updated training that we 
needed to keep abreast of changes to online safety.– Youth offending worker 
- Child Exploitation Online Protection (CEOP) – online safety  

The course was well presented with lots of useful information.  The trainer 
was very knowledgeable and offered good advice. 
– Primary School Teacher -  Child to Parent Abuse 
 

Evaluation and Impact 

 Attendees at all learning events are sent a link to an online course 
evaluation which they are asked to complete as soon as possible. 
Certificates of attendance are only issued on completion of the 
evaluation. Completion rates are improving but further work is still 
required to maximise the value of the evaluations.  

 

 In addition to answering questions about their overall perception of 
the course attendees are asked whether they think the course will 
be effective in improving their practice. 
 

 This data provides extremely helpful information both about the 
relevance and quality of the course itself and about the skills and 
knowledge of trainers we commission. 

 

 The effectiveness of ESCB training is also monitored through the 
quality assurance committee. Findings are used to inform ongoing 
training and development 

 

 All courses delivered this year have been evaluated positively.  
 

 All evaluation reports are sent to Training providers and all are 
analysed by the Training and Development Group. 
 

 A breakdown of attendance and evaluation of all courses can be 
found in the ESCB Learning and Development Annual report 
2017/18 
 

 For more information of training click here  
 

 There have been some challenges in the engagement of adults 
safeguarding, which has improved now the group is chaired by the 
adults safeguarding board manager 

 

 The financial resourcing and delivery of training are different and 
this year, there has been an acknowledgement of the differences, 
but a recognition that there are many areas of opportunity to join 
up learning and embed a Think Family approach 
 

 The agency percentage breakdown attending training attendance 
has remained consistent, with Education, Children Social Care, 
health and VCS. 

The partners will:  

 Strengthen the joint multi-agency learning and development offer 
and ensure despite who commissions training it will be available to 
all areas regardless if their primary focus is children or adults 
 

 Recognising the different learning models there will be a focus on 
embedding more online and bite size learning opportunities.  
 

 Next year there will be a focus on increasing the attendance of 
partners whose attendance was lower than expected. 

P
age 69

https://new.enfield.gov.uk/enfieldlscb/training-and-learning


 

24 
 

Communication  

 We continued to raise the profile of ESCB by developing and 
maintaining the ESCB website, getting articles into the local press, and 
developing our social media presence of both Twitter and Facebook 

 

 923 ESCB twitter followers, 173 tweets viewed 60,622 times and 
retweeted 173 times 

 

 5459 users visited the ESCB website in 2017/18 with over 21,000 pages 
views.  Most popular pages excluding home page: a) SPOE, Contact Us 
and Learning and Development 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

P
age 70



 

25 
 

8. Priorities and challenges for next year and beyond 
 

Priority 1: The Local Safeguarding Context 
 

What the ESCB want to 
achieve: 

What we will do:  
 

How will we know:  

Children and Young people 
are safe from harm, inside 
the home, outside the home 
and online 
 

Work with partners to identify and respond to Enfield’s local safeguarding 
priorities: 

 Vulnerable Children and Young People: those affected or at risk of 
CSE, Radicalisation, Neglect, violence and gang activity, mental 
health, Trafficking and Modern Slavery, Harmful Practices 
(including Female Genital Mutilation, Forced Marriage and Honour 
Based Abuse, Domestic abuse and violence  

We will know our local profile of the children 
and young people who are at risk of harm or 
exploitation, and will use this information to 
inform strategies, commissioning and 
practice. 

Create a multi-agency dataset that reflects activity across the partners, 
focused on continuous improvement of child protection and identifying 
themes for further activity. 

We will know the local responses across the 
partnerships in response to the identification 
of risk of harm or exploitation of children and 
young people 

Capture the voices of children and young people so they exert ongoing 
influence on the partnership’s effectiveness 

We will be able to demonstrate the voice of 
children and young people has been sought 
and captured and evidence where their voices 
have influenced the partnership. 

Priority 2: Early Help & Early Intervention 
 

What the ESCB want to 
achieve 

What we will do:  
 

How will we know: 

Children and young people 
have access to the right help, 
the right service at the right 
time and in the right place 

We will agree and publish a revised Threshold of Needs document which 
sets out the local criteria for action in a way that is transparent, accessible 
and easily understood.   

We will be able to evidence that staff report 
they have an increased awareness and 
understanding and are confident to apply 
locally agreed thresholds. 

Monitor the effectiveness of the Front door arrangements and ensure the 
partnership have an agreed understanding and approach to MASH  

Early, targeted support is available for 
children, adults and families who need it. 

Monitor the accessibility and impact of the early help offer being provided 
to children and families. 

We will have evidence that Children, young 
people and parents/carers views were sought 
and that they were made aware of where to 

P
age 71



 

26 
 

go to access support and when that support 
has made a difference. 

Priority 3: Strong Leadership & Strong Partnership 
 

What the ESCB want to 
achieve 

What we will do:  
 

How will we know: 

Effective partnership 
working and accountability 
to improve safeguarding 
outcomes for children, 
young people and their 
families 

Continue to strengthen the link and governance arrangements between the 
ESCB and other key strategic forums and work happening locally to support 
children and families  

We will have a governance protocol setting 
out the unique identities, roles, focus areas 
and interrelationship of the strategic 
partnerships 

Ensure the ESCB continues to carry out all its statutory functions until such 
time the new arrangements begin to operate in Enfield4. Maintaining the 
strengths and ownership of safeguarding across the partnership during the 
transition to the new arrangements 

We will publish the local arrangements and 
notify the Secretary of State for Education 
 
 

Maintaining and, if necessary, recruiting additional lay members from the 
community into the partnership to continue the excellent dialogue, scrutiny 
and involvement from recent years. 

Priority 4: a healthy workforce 
 

What the ESCB want to 
achieve  

What we will do:  
 

How will we know: 

Reassurance that agencies 
have in place effective 
arrangements to support 
their staff to continue 
delivering high quality and 
safe practice considering 
current public funding 
reductions. 

 Seek reassurance that management oversight is robust and front-line staff 
have access to reflective supervision 

We will understand agencies capacity to 
maintain safeguarding arrangements  

 
 

                                                           
4
 Safeguarding partners have up to 12 months, from 29 June 2018, to agree their local arrangements and which relevant agencies they consider appropriate should work with them to 

safeguard and promote the welfare of children in their area 

P
age 72



 

27 
 

Appendix:  1 
Membership list 2017/18 

 
INDEPENDENT CHAIR GERALDINE GAVIN  

ESCB TEAM  Grant Landon  Service Manager, Practice and Partnership (left December 2017) 

 Judy  Dennis Board Coordinator 

 Lisa  Tait Training coordinator 

 Aileen Ingram CDOP coordinator (left July 2017) 

PARTICIPANT OBSERVERS Ayfer Orhan Lead Member for children, London Borough of Enfield 

 Glynis Vince Shadow Lead Member for children, London Borough of Enfield 

BOARD MEMBERS     

PEOPLE DIRECTORATE Anne Stoker Assistant Director Children's Social Care and Principal Social Worker 

 Tony Theodoulou Executive Director of Children's Services 

 Sharon Burgess Head of Safeguarding Adults, QA & Complaints 

 Andrea Clemons Head of Service, Community Safety Unit 

 Jenny  Tosh Chief Education Officer 

 Bharat Ayer Safeguarding Adults Team Manager 

PUBLIC HEALTH Stuart Lines Children's Consultant, Public Health 
THIRD SECTOR Claire Whetstone Director, ECYPS 

SCHOOLS  Antoinette Goldwater Headteacher, Fleecefield Primary School 

 Yeliz Sabri Vice Principal, Aylward Academy, Secondary School  

 Gail Weir Headteacher, Waverley School, Special School 

 Lynne Dawes Headteacher Oasis Academy Hadley (left in 2017) 

POLICE Tony  Kelly Detective Superintendent, Enfield Borough Police 

 Iain Raphael Borough Commander  

CCG Carole Bruce-Gordon Director of Quality & Governance (Acting), Enfield CCG 

 Hetul  Shah GP, Enfield CCG 

 Christina Keating Designated Nurse, Enfield Clinical Commissioning Group 

P
age 73



 

28 
 

 Melanie Menden Designated Doctor for Safeguarding in Enfield  
NMUH Deborah Wheeler Director of Nursing & Midwifery 

 Betty  Wynne  Deputy Director of Nursing 

BEHMHT Linda McQuaid Interim Director of Nursing,  BEHMHT 

ROYAL FREE LONDON NHS 
TRUST 

Helen  Swarbrick Acting Head of Safeguarding / Named Nurse, Royal Free London NHS Foundation Trust 

 Mary Sexton Executive Director of Nursing, Quality and Governance   

LAS Sophie Hill Quality, Governance & Assurance Manager, London Ambulance Service 

    

CAFCASS Paula Kelly Service Manager 

PROBATION Clare  Ansdell Assistant Chief Officer, National Probation Service - Barnet, Brent & Enfield 

CRC Vacant    
LAY MEMBERS Rick  Jewell Lay Member (left April 2018) 
 Irene Ridley Lay Member (left April 2018) 
 

P
age 74



1 
 

 

REPORT TO: OSC 
 
DATE: 5th September 2018 
 
REPORT TITLE: Annual IRO (Independent Reviewing Officers) Report 
 
 
REPORT AUTHOR/S: 
Maria Anastasi 
Maria.anastasi@enfield.gov.uk 
Tel 0208 379 2746 
 
 
PURPOSE OF REPORT: 
 
For the committee to be updated about the work of the IROs during the period 
2017-18 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
This report updates the Overview and Scrutiny Panel on the IROs during the period 
April 2017 to March 2018. 
 

 The number of Looked After Children at the end of March 2018 was 347. 

Numbers of Looked After Children have remained consistent during the last few 

years. 

 There were 16 adoptions and 32 Special Guardianship Orders 

 Twenty young people were remanded in the care of the local authority care 

 At the end of March 2018, 63 of the Looked After Children were unaccompanied 

minors. Since April 2018, the benchmark has changed to 59 (this is based on DfE 

calculations of the local population) and cases are transferred to other local 

authorities under the National Transfer Scheme. This has on occasions has taken 

longer than originally planned and has had an impact on young people who have 

already settled in placements. 

 The number of children subject to child protection plans at the end of March 

2018 was 242. The number of child protection plans at the end of March 207 was 

Page 75 Agenda Item 6

mailto:Maria.anastasi@enfield.gov.uk


2 
 

223.There has been a steady increase in the number of CP plans over the whole 

year which peaked to 257 in August 2017. A contributory factor to this increase 

was an unusually busy period and conferences for three large sibling groups. 

 Twenty -nine transfer in conferences took place in 2017/18 (58 children) 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
1. BACKGROUND 
 

Independent Reviewing Officers (IROs) were introduced nationally to 

represent the interests of looked after children. Their role was strengthened 

through the introduction of statutory guidance in April 2011. The 

Independent Review Officers (IRO) service standards are set within the 

framework of the updated IRO Handbook, Department for Children, Schools 

and Families (2010) and linked to revised Care Planning Regulations and 

Guidance which were introduced in April 2011. 

 

. In Enfield, the IROs are also responsible for chairing Child Protection 

conferences, Disruption Meetings and undertake some LADO (managing 

allegations against staff and volunteers) work. A separate annual LADO report 

has been completed. It is an expectation that an annual report outlining the 

key activities of the IRO’s is published every year. 

 
2  ISSUES AND CHALLENGES 

 
Looked after children that runaway must be offered an independent 
debriefing interview within 72 hours of their return. From the 1st October 
the debriefing interviews will be carried out by IRO’s. for all looked after and 
children and those subject to child protection plans. Statutory guidance 
(2014) specifies that these interviews should be carried out by an 
independent person (ie someone not involved in caring for the young 
person). 

Page 76



3 
 

 
This is a new area of work for the Service and the challenge will be to 
develop robust systems and processes to ensure we are delivering good 
quality service and identifying trends and patterns which will enable the 
department to consider how we can reduce the incidents of missing young 
people and signposting them to appropriate services. 
 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

That the scrutiny panel notes the findings of this report and attached IRO  
annual report 2017-18. 
 

Enfield IRO Annual 

Report 2017-18.pdf
 

 
 

 
3. NEXT STEPS 

 
 

 Developing processes to ensure de-briefing interviews for children 
looked after or subject to child protection plans are of a good quality 
and information is analysed to inform social work practice 

 

 Improvement in some of the key performance indicators (how 
information is recorded to reflect the activity of the service) 

 

 The recruitment of the part-time LADO 
 

 Contribute to the department’s continuous improvement plan and 
quality assurance programme 
 

 
 
 

Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



1 
 

 

REPORT TO: OSC 
 
DATE: 5th September 2018 
 
REPORT TITLE: Annual LADO (Local Authority Designated Officer) Report 
 
 
REPORT AUTHOR/S: 
Maria Anastasi 
Maria.anastasi@enfield.gov.uk 
Tel 0208 379 2746 
 
 
PURPOSE OF REPORT: 
 
For the committee to be updated about the work of the LADO during the period 
2017-18 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
This report updates the Overview and Scrutiny Panel on the annual LADO work 
during the period April 2017 to March 2018. 
 

 The role of the LADO is set out in the “Working Together to Safeguard 
Children” guidance. The guidance was updated in 2018. 
 

 It has been a requirement since 2015 that the LADO is sufficiently qualified 
and experience to fulfil this role effectively and requires newly appointed 
officers to be qualified social workers. 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
1. BACKGROUND 
 

 In Enfield, the role of the LADO is undertaken by the Head of Safeguarding 
and Quality Service (SQS) who has responsibility for overseeing 
investigations, alerting senior council officers to allegations of a serious 
nature and making referrals to the Disclosure and Baring Service. Child 
Protection Conference Chairs/Independent Reviewing Officers in SQS will 
lead on investigations in the absence of the LADO. 
 

Page 97 Agenda Item 7

mailto:Maria.anastasi@enfield.gov.uk


2 
 

 In addition to leading on investigations, the service offer advice and 
guidance when there may be concerns about a person’s conduct and when 
the threshold for a formal investigation has not been met.  
 

 In addition to the above activities, the LADO has liaised with the Schools 
Standards and Support when there have been referrals from OFSTED, to co-
ordinate responses in a timely fashion 
 

 Training is an integral part of staff development and several training sessions 
have been delivered to LSCB agencies and Enfield foster carers. There were 
62 allegations between 1.4.17 and 31.3 2018 of which 22 (approximately 
35%) of the allegations were substantiated. 
 

 In addition to the above 62 allegations, there have been 80 consultations 
with the LADO, where the threshold for formal LADO intervention had not 
been met. 
 

 The number of allegations has increased by 25% this year and the number of 
substantiated ones has also increased significantly. These figures would 
suggest that the LADO intervention has been appropriate and measured. 

 

 There has been one dismissal two people resigned from their positions. DBS 
referrals have been made or are being processed in these cases. 
 

 There are five ongoing investigations. Four of these are led by the police and 
three are pending decisions by CPS on whether charges will be made. There 
have been charges on one and court date has now been confirmed. One 
allegation is being managed under disciplinary procedures. 
 

 As part of the internal audit programme the LADO work was reviewed there 
were no safeguarding concerns raised the 4 findings related to process and 
quality assurance which have been accepted and actioned. 

 
 
2. ISSUES AND CHALLENGES 
 

Several allegations have been of a complex nature and have not been  
concluded. These have been police led and CPS have taken a very long time 
to decide on whether to charge. This has had a significant impact on the 
professionals being investigated and the agencies employing them. It also 
has an impact on children/young people who have made the allegations, 
and when appropriate, they have been signposted to agencies for support. 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 98



3 
 

3. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

That the scrutiny panel notes the findings of this report and the attached 
LADO annual report 2017-18. 
 

LADO ANNUAL 

REPORT 2017-18.pdf
 

 
 
4. NEXT STEPS 

 
 

 Implement the 2018 -10 work plan including completion of a peer on 
peer review by the end of the financial year and revision of the LADO 
procedures by October 2018. 

 
 
 

 
 

Page 99



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Customer Experience 

Strategy  
Overview & Scrutiny  

5 September 2018  

www.enfield.gov.uk 

Striving for excellence 

P
age 111

A
genda Item

 8



 

Strategic & organisational alignment  

Vision - ‘Delivering a 

positive customer 

experience’  

 

A top priority aligned with 

the new corporate vision of 

“Creating a lifetime of 

opportunities in Enfield”.  

 

Customer experience 

values identified & linked 

to culture change 

A customer promise 

which defines our desired 

behaviours -  

•  friendly and helpful,  

• honest and respectful,  

• professional and 

courteous 

 

P
age 112



3x customer journey reviews – designed to look 

at accessing & receiving the service from the 

customer perspective   

 “I want a repair to my Council home” 

 “I want to make a planning application” 

 “I want to recruit and induct a new member of staff” 

(internal customer). 

 

Year 1 Actions  

 Launching the vision and Customer Promise  

 Exploring the ease or otherwise for those accessing services from the 

‘front door’ and beyond  

 Developing the L&D approach to improve the skills to deliver 

improvements  

 Developing a managers ‘toolkit’  

 Applying the learning to the next tranche of reviews    

 

P
age 113



Placing the customer at the heart of everything 

we do & evidencing improvement  

• Corporate dashboard of key 

performance indicators  

 

• Customer experience baseline 

measures using satisfaction 

surveys & mystery shopping to 

inform and evidence 

improvement  

 

• Corporate resource directory 

to enable signposting  

 

• Customer Experience Maturity 

Model - managers can self 

assess against the model 

alongside the customer 

journey reviews   

 
• Bronze (Level 1): Interested  

• Silver (Level 2): Invested  

• Silver (Level 3): Committed  

• Gold (Level 4): Engaged  

• Gold (Level 5): Embedded  

P
age 114



www.enfield.gov.uk

CUSTOMER 
EXPERIENCE 
STRATEGY
2018-2022

Page 115



2 Customer Experience Strategy 2018-2022

Page 116



www.enfield.gov.uk 3

CONTENTS

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ..................................................................................................4

RECOMMENDATIONS .................................................................................................................................................5

WHO ARE OUR CUSTOMERS? .......................................................................................6

WHAT DO WE KNOW ABOUT OUR CURRENT CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE? .................7

CORPORATE VISION AND GOLDEN THREAD...............................................................8

CUSTOMER PROMISE .................................................................................................................................................9

A DIGITAL AND ICT STRATEGY 2018-2021 ............................................................................................................9

A DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY ..............................................................................................................9

LINKS TO THE CULTURAL AUDIT ..........................................................................................................................10

CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE VISION ............................................................................... 11

IMPLEMENTATION APPROACH AND METHODOLOGY ........................................... 12

MEASURING IMPROVEMENT ................................................................................................................................14

MEASURING THE CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE – INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL ..................................................15

PILOTING THE APPROACH – MATURITY ASSESSMENT ...................................................................................16

APPENDICES

APPENDIX 1: SUMMARY OF CORPORATE PLAN ...................................................... 17

APPENDIX 2: MATURITY MODEL ............................................................................... 18

Page 117



4 Customer Experience Strategy 2018-2022

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Enfield is committed to putting customers at the heart of all Council business.

A strategic approach to Customer Experience will empower enable and track the Council’s ambition to deliver a 
consistently positive customer experience by 2021 and beyond.

Determining customer needs, delivering services and solving problems quickly will lead to a good lasting impression 
and satisfied customers.

Reducing unnecessary enquiries (failure demand) will ensure that resources can be directed to achieving a more 
positive customer experience.

Our assessment of where we are will include the establishment of an organisation wide baseline, an improved set of 
measures and the promotion and use of the customer experience maturity assessment framework.

Assessing maturity identifies the step changes required to improve and reach the level 5 – Gold rating, which will 
evidence an organisation with a fully embedded ethos of a positive customer experience:

This strategy articulates one of Enfield’s top priorities and aligns with the new corporate vision of “creating a lifetime of 
opportunities in Enfield”.

This strategy sets out the Customer Experience vision and demonstrates how the Council will develop – through 
practical application – a methodology and approach to service improvement which will continue from now until 2021.

It will inform and influence other strategies that drive our business and goes hand in hand with the launch of The 
Customer Promise.

This strategy challenges the traditional approach to managing a Council as it aims to “disrupt” Council silos and 
test customer experiences across a range of customer journeys from the customer perspective. This approach 
complements the findings of Cultural Audit and the aspirations of both Councillors and staff.

Within the context of this strategy customers are defined as anyone who lives, works or visits the borough of Enfield – 
residents, businesses, partners, Councillors and internal Council service users.

Bronze Silver Gold

Level 1: 
Interested

Level 2: 
Invested

Level 3: 
Committed

Level 4: 
Engaged

Level 5: 
Embedded

Customer 
experience is 
important but 
understanding is 
to be developed, 
resourcing and 
senior leadership 
support is minimal.

Customer 
experience is 
important and 
initial programmes, 
initiatives are 
being put in place, 
but the effort is 
still not connected 
with the overall 
vision and aims 
for the customer 
experience.

Customer 
experience is 
critical to the 
council and 
senior managers 
understand how 
it is connected 
to delivering the 
vision and aims: 
It’s not customer 
experience 
for customer 
experience’s sake.

Customer 
experience is a 
core part of the 
council’s strategy 
and objectives.

It’s in the council’s 
DNA, the essence 
of everything 
and anything the 
organisation and 
its partners do.

Diagram 1

Page 118



www.enfield.gov.uk 5

During the “discovery” phase of this strategy, we established: 

1. The intention for a positive customer experience to become embedded as part of the DNA of the organisation 
applying it to all transactions both with local residents, businesses partners and internal services. It will be 
tightly woven into the organisational culture and fully embedded by user-friendly technology, co-designed with 
its customers. From a Customer Experience Staff Engagement Board, we intend to promote a “golden thread” 
enabling the customer experience to be woven from the high level corporate vision, through current services, teams 
and onwards to individuals behaviours.

2. The Council knows its approach needs to be more targeted towards tackling some of the borough’s more complex 
demand led issues and future budget pressures, particularly on high-cost services for vulnerable residents.

3. The complementary strategies for ICT & Digital and the ICT Infrastructure enable the Enfield customer to access 
world class digital infrastructure, stimulating our economy and making Enfield a prime destination for businesses.

4. This strategy, whilst building on behavioural and cultural change within the Council, must also support existing 
initiatives in service delivery, e.g. the emerging use of customer insight. The suggested continuous improvement 
model captures both the organisational culture and behaviours, linking directly to the findings of the Cultural Audit 
and the use of the resources provided by the Institute of Customer Service (ICS).

Recommendations:

1. Explore and develop the service improvement methodology and manager’s toolkit by undertaking three customer 
experience reviews which will examine in depth, three “customer journeys”. The first two areas have been chosen 
as a priority, as there is high volume demand for these services from local residents. The third area presents an 
opportunity to review the experience of new Council employees in terms of application, welcome, induction and key 
messages:

• “I want a repair to my Council home”
• “I want to make a planning application”
• “I want to recruit and induct a new member of staff” (internal customer).

2. Learn lessons from the initial Customer Experience reviews:

• Implement any changes to the suggested methodology and the emerging toolkit used for baselining and 
delivering continuous improvement.

3. Specific application:

• Develop and agree an initial one-year customer experience action plan, developing forward plans for a series of 
other “customer journeys” (to be chosen).

• Lessons learned will inform the plans for 2019-2021.

4. Embed the philosophy and ethos of the customer experience vision and the Customer Promise: 

• Communicate this strategy across the Council, service delivery partners and contractors so there is a level of 
awareness and education about how it impacts at a corporate, service, team and individual level.

• From April 2019 – agree to implement the golden thread of customer experience through the Council’s service 
planning mechanisms.

• Use a Customer Experience Staff Engagement Board to champion the Customer Experience Strategy; 
contextualised within the new corporate vision, communicate the Customer Experience vision, Customer 
Promise and help the Council to realise its ambition.

Page 119



6 Customer Experience Strategy 2018-2022

WHO ARE OUR CUSTOMERS?
The Council’s borough profile highlights that with our rich heritage and diverse community, 
customers (in any sense of definition) come to Enfield from many different places. 

A London borough with a proud history, great architecture and open spaces, a lively cultural offer and links to national 
motorway routes make Enfield an appealing place to visit. The borough is about 12 miles by road from the centre of 
London and has good transport links in to and out of the capital. The borough’s population is estimated to be 331,395 
(Office for National Statistics - 2016), making Enfield the 5th largest of the 33 London boroughs, whose combined 
population is 8.6 million people.

The Council’s community is distinguished by the comparatively high proportion of young and older people living in the 
borough. Children and young people, make-up 23% of the population, the 4th highest proportion in London, while 
older people aged 65 or over make-up, nearly 13% of residents, the 11th highest in London.

The Council’s community is richly diverse, with an estimated 35% from White British backgrounds, with Other White 
groups at 25%, Other Ethnic Groups at 6%, Mixed Groups at 5%, Asian Groups at 10% and Black groups at 18.%. 
Over 178 languages or dialects are being spoken by pupils who live in Enfield. The proportion of pupils whose first 
language was known or believed not to be English was 46%. In 2015 the estimated percentage of adults who speak 
English at home was 69%.

Customer statistics along with the emerging use of customer insight and data analytics, will inform the themes chosen 
to explore and improve the customer experience.

The borough’s profile1 highlights the various groups and varying needs and solutions we must explore with our 
community and customers, to meet their needs and deliver a positive customer experience. We are working with our 
partners to address the issues and problems our residents face; providing employment and skills opportunities, as well 
as affordable child care, housing solutions and support in other related issues.

From a customer experience perspective, we have invested in the tools to have sufficient customer insight to 
understand both how and why our customers access services and interact with us and to build a responsive picture to 
meet the needs of our residents, during ‘single issue service requests’ or ‘life event’ needs. Within the context of this 
strategy customers are defined as residents, businesses, partners and internal Council services.

1 https://new.enfield.gov.uk/services/your-council/about-enfield/borough-and-wards-profiles/about-enfield--information-borough-
profile-2017.pdf

Page 120

https://new.enfield.gov.uk/services/your-council/about-enfield/borough-and-wards-profiles/about-enfield--information-boroughprofile-2017.pdf
https://new.enfield.gov.uk/services/your-council/about-enfield/borough-and-wards-profiles/about-enfield--information-boroughprofile-2017.pdf


www.enfield.gov.uk 7

WHAT DO WE KNOW ABOUT OUR CURRENT 
CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE?
Delivering services to local businesses and residents, enabling people to report and request 
services, dealing with enquiries across all service channels and enabling people to access 
information, is big business for the Council.

The following information about customers and customer transactions gives a flavour of the number of interactions 
handled by the Council during financial year 2017/18:

Council managed housing, council tax, benefits and waste  services are identified as areas the highest customer 
demand. 

The ability to transact easily and effectively with the Council is an organisational priority, getting it right provides the 
opportunity for efficient service delivery, but getting it wrong consumes resources and impacts on satisfaction with the 
Council and its services. 

By adopting a ‘values based’ approach, we have set out the behaviours expected from our staff and contractors, 
in which the step by step interaction – from the first point of contact to resolution – delivers our promise and a 
satisfactory outcome is achieved for our customers.

Good internal customer service between teams within the Council, sets the context for colleagues who deal directly 
with the public and local businesses. It also links with the findings from the cultural audit, and should improve staff 
feelings of being listened to and wanting to enact change.

575,411 
telephone calls for 
General Enquiries, 
Council Housing and 
Community Housing

1,600,000 
payment transactions 
using direct debit, standing 
orders and other methods

8,294,544 
web hits

168,000 
annual calls for complex 
housing benefit, council 
tax and business rates 
enquiries

124,500 
households who receive a 
council tax bill

35,800 
households receive 
assistance with a Council 
Tax Support claim

Approximately 
3,500 
complaints/customer 
concerns/service issues 
per annum 

124,500 
households get waste 
and recycling collection

35,000 
Environment Services 
Transactions per annum 
(these include Planning 
Applications, Pest Control 
Activities, other Regulatory 
Services etc).

1,239,000 
physical visits to our libraries

19,000 
households living in council 
managed leasehold, rented 
and temporary housing 

2,700 
Children and young people 
being worked with by 
Children’s Services 

10,000
persons worked with by 
Adult Social Care   

102,500 
Enfield Connected accounts

Page 121



8 Customer Experience Strategy 2018-2022

CORPORATE VISION AND GOLDEN THREAD
‘Creating a lifetime of opportunities in Enfield’

This strategy is a key delivery component of the Corporate Vision. The diagram below highlights the parts of the Vision 
articulated through the Corporate Plan, in which ‘the people and the place’ are supported by three headline strategic 
priorities and have inputted into this strategy.

Diagram 2

THE PEOPLE AND THE PLACE 
Delivering for everyone in Enfield over the next four years:

Good homes in well-
connected neighbourhoods

• Deliver regeneration to 
create thriving, affordable 
neighbourhoods and places.

• Increase the supply of 
affordable housing including 
ownership, private rent, council 
housing and other social rent.

• Drive investment in rail, roads 
and cycling infrastructure 
to improve connectivity 
and support economic 
development.

• Create an enterprising 
environment for businesses to 
prosper with world-class digital 
infrastructure and access to the 
right skills and networks.

Build our local economy  
to create a thriving place

• Work with local businesses and 
partners to develop a strong 
and competitive local economy 
and vibrant town centres that 
benefit all residents.

• Support residents to take 
more responsibility and play a 
greater role in developing active 
communities.

• Enable people to reach their 
potential through access to high 
quality schools and learning; 
and create more opportunities 
for training and employment.

• Embrace our diversity, culture 
and heritage and work on 
reducing inequalities to make 
Enfield a place for people to 
enjoy from childhood to old age.

Sustain strong and  
healthy communities

• Protect those most in need 
by continuing to deliver the 
services and safeguarding 
measures they rely on.

• Work smartly with our partners 
and other service providers so 
that as many people as possible 
are able to live independent and 
full lives.

• Build measures into all our 
strategies and projects that will 
help improve people’s health.

• Work with partners to protect 
the local urban and green 
environment and make Enfield 
a safer place by tackling all 
types of crime and anti-social 
behaviour.

OUR GUIDING PRINCIPLES
We will: 

Communicate with you

• Be responsive, effective 
and consistent in our 
communications with residents.

• Listen carefully to what our 
residents need and use this 
information to improve our 
services.

• Promote Enfield widely to ensure 
that the Borough receives the 
maximum benefit from national, 
regional and sub-regional 
programmes.

Work with you

• Be open and transparent about 
what we are able to deliver.

• Engage with residents to 
measure and evaluate our 
services.

• Collaborate across the Borough 
and beyond to develop new 
ways of working.

• Value the workforce across the 
Borough and enable them to 
deliver services effectively and 
efficiently.

Work smartly for you

• Target resources smartly and 
reinvest income wisely to deliver 
excellent value for money and 
reduce inequality.

• Develop new partnerships across 
the public, private, voluntary and 
community sectors to deliver 
better outcomes for residents.

• Increase access to digital services 
and transactions and make better 
use of data to understand the 
needs of our residents.

Page 122



www.enfield.gov.uk 9

The Corporate Plan Guiding Principles highlight key customer experience outcomes which underpin our strategic 
priorities, specifically:

• Our communication with our customers will be two way - we will be responsive, consistent and effective in our 
communications but we will also establish mechanisms to listen carefully to our customers and use this information 
to continuously improve our services. 

• We will be open and transparent about what is available, what our service standards are and where advice can be 
sought, we will also engage and work collaboratively to evaluate services to achieve improvement in our customer 
experience.

• Working smartly with our customers, valuing the workforce and developing new partnerships to deliver effective and 
efficient services, we will deliver better outcomes. 

The council has three strategies that define a coherent approach to the delivery of these aspects of the corporate plan. 
These strategies – Customer Experience, Digital and ICT, Digital Infrastructure – all aligned to produce a coherent and 
integrated strategic approach.

A golden thread will tie the corporate aspirations through business planning to teams and individuals delivering 
services, this will enable and deliver a positive customer experience across the whole Council.

CUSTOMER PROMISE

Originating from work undertaken with 178 colleagues and customers, the Council set about developing a Customer 
Promise, which will support the achievement of the Customer Experience Vision. Following on from this, a further 140 
local people were canvassed on their views and the following statements of intent / preferred behaviours were finalised. 
Once formally launched, this Customer Promise commits us, as a whole organisation to be:

1. friendly and helpful, 
2. honest and respectful, 
3. professional and courteous.

This will be reviewed after a year of operation. 

A DIGITAL AND ICT STRATEGY 2018-2021

The Council’s Digital and ICT Strategy sets out how customer-centric council services are underpinned and supported 
by ICT and digital services. Its purpose is to improve the customer experience of individual customers, businesses, 
and employees through enabling a digital workforce, operating seamlessly through systems that meet our customers’ 
needs. Its three main strategic themes are:

• Empowered/Self-sufficient Customer – supporting initiatives within the Council, which enable users to succeed 
the first time they engage with services, including through the use of assisted technologies, encouraging and 
enabling self-service options which is particularly important at this time of stretched resources.

• Enabled Employee – providing staff with the tools, skills and capabilities that improve efficiency, flexibility and productivity. 
• Capable Organisation – investing in core underpinning ICT infrastructure, and in the data tools that enable the 

organisation to extract the intelligence needed to inform strategic decision-making.

A DIGITAL INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY

A Digital and Infrastructure strategy is in development and represents a key strategy which will complement both the 
Customer Experience Strategy and the Digital and ICT Strategy. By addressing the need for a robust, high performing 
and secure digital infrastructure for the borough. This will make sure that local people, existing and new businesses 
will benefit from accessing the latest digital technology, creating ‘Digital Enfield’, improving the customer experience, 
increasing the quality of life and helping to transform the local economy. The strategy will aim to:

• Create ‘the right environment for businesses to prosper with world class infrastructure and access to the right skills 
and networks’.

• Provide opportunities for our communities to gain new skills and benefit from high quality digital services.
• Support our ambitions to provide for a positive customer experience.

Page 123



10 Customer Experience Strategy 2018-2022

LINKS TO THE CULTURAL AUDIT

The Cultural Audit was undertaken in late 2017. Staff across the organisation identified an ideal culture they believe will 
help them maximise their contribution to the organisation and improve their work efficiency levels. They believe it will 
enhance the quality of services provided and is consistent with the organisation’s corporate aims and values.

There is recognition that it will require teamwork and also that the change is practical and realistic. This strategy gives a 
framework that will enable some changes that staff wish to see across the organisation.

This strategy will help to address the largest gaps in behaviour identified between the ‘Actual’ and the’ Ideal’ cultures 
which are:

• Self-actualising (we need to increase): gain enjoyment from our work and personal development; take on new 
and interesting activities

• Conventional (we need to reduce): don’t be afraid to challenge the status quo and embrace creativity and new 
ideas

• Humanistic-Encouraging (we need to increase): being supportive, helpful, and interested in the suggestions and 
ideas of others.

The thematic recommendations of this Customer Experience strategy will disrupt silo working, encouraging and 
enabling cross service and inter-departmental working.

Building on the findings of the Cultural Audit, staff believe the organisation has the opportunity to further improve 
services to external customers, and residents. Harnessing this feedback from staff, and working across the Council, 
action will be taken to:

• Improve the Council’s reputation for superior customer services.
• Create consistency around the quality of products and services provided.
• Work to achieve a better fit regarding customer expectations.
• Improve staff confidence in the services that they are providing services. 

A finding from the Cultural audit is;

“Customer Experience Focus: staff ‘think that they are relied upon to provide information about customers’ needs. 
Most, but not all, feel that their department is responsible for ensuring customer satisfaction.”

This provides a clear and welcome opportunity for:

• A more clearly defined and articulated vision, mission and values for the services provided by the organisation.
• The opportunity to reward and reinforce behaviours that are consistent with the organisation’s values.
• Creation of mechanisms that enable staff throughout the organisation to constructively change and improve it.

The governance that we have put in place for the customer experience programme while looking at specific customer 
journeys, is working across silos. A Staff Engagement Board will drive this from the bottom up, and the new ICS self-
managed learning modules will also support people championing the changes – the intention is to gain understanding 
and input from staff across all service areas.

 

Page 124



www.enfield.gov.uk 11

CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE VISION
140 local people were presented seven vision statements and asked to state a preference. 
From this consultation the following statement drew a strong preference; ‘Delivering a positive 
customer experience’.

Positive customer experiences reflect good customer service interactions; the vision sets the context for colleagues who 
deal directly with the public and local businesses. If we can’t help, then we will tell our customers and offer alternative 
solutions or direct them to where they may get assistance, if available. This requires us to draw on our ‘knowledge’ by 
creating a knowledge base of what is available both within, across services and in the community and by other providers. 
Great communication and partnership working with the third sector and other public and private sector partners in 
Enfield is also essential for accurate and up to date signposting and advice. It is not the intention of the strategy to 
build unrealistic expectations for our customers, rather to encourage and enabling self-help wherever possible.

The Council will develop a single resource directory to support this intention, ensuring that up to date and relevant 
information is available, wherever it is requested.

We are working continuously to realise the Customer Experience vision by putting customers at the heart of everything 
we do. We have developed a set of customer experience values which articulate the behaviours and expectations we 
expect of our staff towards all our customers. These are integral to the Customer Experience “golden thread”, and 
address some of the findings from the cultural audit.

Take Responsibility Open, *Honest and 
Respectful

Work Together to Find 
Solutions Listen and Learn 

• Accept responsibility for 
service delivery

• Set out clear and 
complete information 
about our services

• Fulfil our customer 
promises

• Set clear expectations 
about service delivery

• Deliver what has been 
promised

• Make available quality 
information about 
services

• Keep information clear, 
relevant and up to date

• Be open and honest in 
dealings with customers

• Act morally and ethically
• *Be friendly and helpful
• *Be professional and 

courteous
• Be clear and concise
• Be transparent in 

communications

• Identify solutions to 
address customer 
concerns

• Actively seek to resolve 
customer concerns

• Review and expand 
communication 
channels

• Enable customers 
to give feedback on 
processes and services

• Listen to and reflect on 
customer concerns

• Acknowledge customer 
concerns

• Understand the 
customer’s point of view

*The Customer Promise 
Table 1

The golden thread will ensure that these values are integrated into the Council’s service delivery plans to improve the 
customer experience.

These commitments deliver the Council’s principles and enable us to measure our performance using both the 
customer experience dashboard and individual service metrics (where appropriate) against the Customer Promise that 
we have adopted.

Page 125



12 Customer Experience Strategy 2018-2022

IMPLEMENTATION APPROACH AND 
METHODOLOGY
The Council will adopt an agile approach to implementing this strategy.

The establishment of organisation wide performance measures, which will capture relevant performance indicators 
across a range of service areas, will enable key stakeholders to have access to up to date performance information ‘at 
a glance’.

The use of industry standard Customer Experience Maturity Assessments will be promoted to create the baseline 
against which improvement will be measured. Maturity Assessments will enable the Council to understand where we 
are on our journey towards providing a positive customer experience.

Using the Maturity Assessment model, a series of standards and questions are applied across a service area, or 
segment of services associated with a ‘life event’ or customer journey theme.

This will be a self-assessment, informing the level services are at, from an award of Bronze, Silver or Gold level.

Bronze Silver Gold

Level 1: 
Interested

Level 2: 
Invested

Level 3: 
Committed

Level 4: 
Engaged

Level 5: 
Embedded

1. Culture Audit 
completed – self 
assessment using 
the values.

2. Approach to staff 
development – 
values and skills – 
determined.

3. Customer maturity 
level determined.

4. Digital maturity level 
determined.

5. Customer Experience 
Strategy developed 
per service and 
corporately.

1. Customer 
Experience Strategy 
signed off and 
communicated 
across the Council.

2. Culture shift 
activities planned 
and communicated.

3. Behaviours 
framework in 
place for staff 
improvement.

4. Workshops 
developed 
to improve 
understanding of 
customer.

5. User needs 
workshops 
delivered to 
customer facing 
teams.

6. Measures 
determined to 
identify customer 
engagement and 
feedback.

1. Customer 
Experience Strategy 
used to determine 
interaction with 
customers.

2. Management 
support culture 
change.

3. Staff are measured 
on behaviours and 
self-regulation.

4. Staff and customer 
feedback used 
to plan Customer 
Experience.

5. Digital solutions are 
determined by user 
engagement.

6. Measures are 
used to determine 
business 
interventions.

1. Customer 
Experience Strategy 
deliverables are 
on track and 
communicated 
across council.

2. Culture change 
is underway and 
recognised by staff 
and customers 

3. Staff self-regulate 
their own behaviour 
and that of their 
colleagues.

4. Feedback shows 
improvement 
in customer 
experience.

5. User centred design 
is the first point of 
determining new 
service.

6. Customer data 
is compiled, 
circulated and 
used.

7. Analytics are valued 
and understood.

1. Customer Experience 
strategy is realised as 
the way we work.

2. Culture is one of 
self-regulation, 
expression of 
thought, collaborative 
working and 
Customer Experience 
centred service.

3. Staff are recognised 
and rewarded 
for outstanding 
Customer 
Experience.

4. Improvements can 
be measured from 
feedback and new 
ways of engaging 
customers create a 
co-design model.

5. User needs 
and codesign 
drive service 
improvements.

6. Customer data drives 
service improvement.

7. Analytics allow 
service to customers 
to be predicted.

Diagram 3

Page 126



www.enfield.gov.uk 13

The categories for maturity assessment have been developed to support an ‘Enfield centric’ approach and create a 
baseline against which improvements to the customer experience can be evidenced.

The following table demonstrates the approach to gain a high level understanding of the assessment, with the 
attributes looked for in each “service” level:

Core aspect of Customer 
Experience Articulated by

Customer Understanding Holds an accurate picture of the target customers and sets out the experience that 
they expect.

Measurement Measures and tracks the customer experience to identify new problems and point out 
areas to continuously improve.

Management Analyses the customer experience metrics and makes decisions that drive customer 
improvement projects and customer experience design.

Design Follows a standard design process to develop and improve customer experiences.

Process Understands, maps and improves the processes that impact on a positive customer 
experience.

Technology Constantly seeks out, evaluates and implements new technology to improve the 
customer experience.

Culture and Organisation Hires and trains employees to deliver a positive customer experience, recognising and 
rewarding good performance against agreed customer experience metrics.

Table 2

Each service area will gain an initial ‘score’, with a set of actions to progress to the next level.

Once adopted, implementation will require a multi-disciplinary approach encompassing a cross service business 
analyst skillset, subject matter experts, external benchmarking where available and sufficient prioritisation from the 
relevant management team to make time within the work programme for change to happen.

Page 127



14 Customer Experience Strategy 2018-2022

MEASURING IMPROVEMENT

To create a roadmap for improvement, it is important to understand where the council is now and to provide a 
framework by which improvement outcomes can be defined and measured. We will use elements of the maturity 
model and performance measures to identify the starting points for the various strategic components.

Diagram 4

Specific and meaningful customer experience measures relevant to the service areas will need to be developed, linked 
to delivery of the overall objectives. This approach will enable us to demonstrate improvement in customer experience 
at corporate and service level, as well as evidencing improvements across the whole Council.

We will develop user and customer experience testing protocols with all of our software and digital development. This 
will help us to make the smartest use of our investments. We will also continue to automate customer transactions and 
develop easy to use self- service options wherever possible, within existing and new systems.

Measures will apply to both internal and external services, as well as contractors or other models of service delivery 
funded to provide services to customers.

This approach will he Council to develop the “golden thread” from the Corporate Vision right through the organisation. 
This approach will enable us to:

• Improve our understanding of each element of a customer journey 
• Create a baseline for department / team / service
• Agree targets and terms for measurement annually (SMART)
• Set out timescales for improvement

We will also need to ensure that other strategically important areas (such as HR, ICT and digital) are focused on 
enabling a positive customer experience for our internal customers.

CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE VISION
‘We will deliver a positive customer experience’ through a promise to:

1. Be friendly and helpful 2. Be honest and respectful 3. Be professional and courteous

Culture and Behaviour objectives:

Take Responsibility Open, Honest and 
Respectful 

Work Together to Find 
Solutions Listen and Learn 

Financial aims
• Getting it right first time and therefore saving 

money
• Matching the customer journey to customer need 

Process aims
• Map the target customer experience.
• Understand the gaps of current customer 

experience to target.
• Define enablers (digital, training, information share) 

to achieve excellence.

Customer aims
• Improve customer experience through a promise 

that adds value.
• Develop measures of what is important to the 

customer.
• Listen to customers and act on their feedback.

Learning and Development aims
• Help people through training do a better job for 

internal and external customers.
• Share experiences to learn how to improve 

through working groups.
• Enable teams to help other teams.
• Where appropriate use ICS self manage learning.

Page 128



www.enfield.gov.uk 15

MEASURING THE CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE – INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL

The council is interested in knowing and measuring the customer experience. To truly know what type of experience 
our customers are having we need to qualitatively measure the experience by:

• Capturing customer satisfaction levels
• Using the ‘net promoter score’ where appropriate
• Assessing the ease of effort to access services.
• Establishing qualitative measurement against the elements of the Customer Promise.

The measures proposed as the Customer Experience reviews roll out across the organisation must align with the 
vision and behavioural objectives. Engaging residents in defining and developing services through focus groups, phone 
surveys etc. will give us a rounder richer understanding of the customer experience. The following table sets out some 
examples of Customer Experience measures.

Example: Customer Experience Vision
Culture and Behaviour Objectives

Examples 
of Customer 
Satisfaction 
questions

Measure Net promoter 
question (where 
appropriate)

Measure Customer effort 
question

Measure

How satisfied 
were you with 
the overall 
experience?

Satisfaction / 
Dissatisfaction 
levels 

On a scale 
of 1-10 how 
much better (or 
worse) was your 
experience of 
our service/s 
compared 
to what you 
expected?

Would you 
recommend our 
services?

1 being lowest 
and 10 being the 
highest score

How easy was it 
for you to resolve 
your issue?

1 being lowest 
and 10 being the 
highest score

How would you 
rate your overall 
experience 
today?

Poor / Fair/ 
Good / Excellent

How flexible were 
we at providing 
an answer 
to complex 
questions?

Satisfaction / 
Dissatisfaction 
levels 

Were you able 
to complete the 
purpose of your 
visit today? 

Yes / No / 
Partially

Table 3

Page 129



16 Customer Experience Strategy 2018-2022

PILOTING THE APPROACH – MATURITY ASSESSMENT

In the Discovery phase, a pilot review of HR Recruitment was trialed with the Head of Human Resources and 
Operations and internal customer experience observations were captured from the Executive Director of Resources.

The write up for this piece of work is extensive and can be found as background paper number 1.

The recommendations from this pilot work carried forward into the implementation of the Council’s Customer 
Experience strategy are:

• Continue the use of ‘life events’ / ‘customer journeys’ to assess the maturity of different services.
• Development of assessment measures where improvement can be achieved but recognise the constraints of 

financial pressures, e.g. ‘level 3 – accepted’; and ‘level 4/5 – only possible with significant investment’.
• Change the order of the maturity assessment model whereby future workshops are conducted with the 

assessment of easily understood elements first; such as process, technology, management and measurement. 
This recommendation is made in the context of the delivery of the Customer Experience Strategy still being at a 
comparatively early stage.

• Identify service standards which describe a ‘good’ and ‘excellent’ customer experience.
• The development of specific actions to state what the required improvement level would look like and what needs 

to happen to achieve it.

In future Customer Experience reviews and the implementation improvement work should consider the use of classic 
service review techniques, with the following steps used to understand the ‘As Is’ customer experience:

No Step 

1 Collect relevant data on customer satisfaction, complaints, service specific surveys etc. and use this to 
understand the current service position (As Is).

2 Map the customer journey from start to end for the “life event” (For example; the schools admissions process, 
adult social care services avenues, advice and information routes and alternatives service offers etc.).

3 Undertake a ‘life events’ service maturity assessment to establish the level of maturity of the council in delivering 
the ‘life events’ needs of the customer – as a ‘peer’ review self-assessment with the relevant services.

4 Establish what excellent looks like; evidence of core requirements, policies, procedures, standards, 
accreditations, awards etc. and how each score for the relevant service in the customer journey contributes to 
an overall score for the way in which the council responds to the “life event”. A score out of 1-5, with a rating 
of Bronze/Silver/Gold.

5 Identify the gaps in reaching ‘excellence’ in the customer experience for the “life event” being assessed.

6 Translate this in to what excellence looks like. Identify improvements for the whole organisation – department, 
service, teams and individual and;

7 Develop an action plan for achieving an ‘excellent’ maturity rating, with timescales and owners identified 
across the organisation.

Table 4

Page 130



www.enfield.gov.uk 17

OUR GUIDING PRINCIPLES
We will:

THE PEOPLE AND THE PLACE 
Delivering for everyone in Enfield over the next four years:

Communicate with you

• Be responsive, effective 
and consistent in our 
communications with 
residents.

• Listen carefully to what our 
residents need and use this 
information to improve our 
services.

• Promote Enfield widely to 
ensure that the Borough 
receives the maximum benefit 
from national, regional and sub-
regional programmes.

Good homes in 
well-connected 
neighbourhoods

• Deliver regeneration to 
create thriving, affordable 
neighbourhoods and places.

• Increase the supply of 
affordable housing including 
ownership, private rent, council 
housing and other social rent.

• Drive investment in rail, roads 
and cycling infrastructure 
to improve connectivity 
and support economic 
development.

• Create an enterprising 
environment for businesses to 
prosper with world-class digital 
infrastructure and access to 
the right skills and networks.

APPENDIX 1: SUMMARY OF CORPORATE PLAN

Work with you

• Be open and transparent about 
what we are able to deliver.

• Engage with residents to 
measure and evaluate our 
services.

• Collaborate across the Borough 
and beyond to develop new 
ways of working.

• Value the workforce across the 
Borough and enable them to 
deliver services effectively and 
efficiently.

Work smartly for you

• Target resources smartly and 
reinvest income wisely to deliver 
excellent value for money and 
reduce inequality.

• Develop new partnerships 
across the public, private, 
voluntary and community 
sectors to deliver better 
outcomes for residents.

• Increase access to digital 
services and transactions and 
make better use of data to 
understand the needs of our 
residents.

Build our local 
economy to create a 
thriving place

• Work with local businesses and 
partners to develop a strong 
and competitive local economy 
and vibrant town centres that 
benefit all residents.

• Support residents to take more 
responsibility and play a greater 
role in developing active 
communities.

• Enable people to reach their 
potential through access 
to high quality schools and 
learning; and create more 
opportunities for training and 
employment.

• Embrace our diversity, culture 
and heritage and work on 
reducing inequalities to make 
Enfield a place for people to 
enjoy from childhood to old age.

Sustain strong and  
healthy communities

• Protect those most in need 
by continuing to deliver the 
services and safeguarding 
measures they rely on.

• Work smartly with our partners 
and other service providers 
so that as many people 
as possible are able to live 
independent and full lives.

• Build measures into all our 
strategies and projects that will 
help improve people’s health.

• Work with partners to protect 
the local urban and green 
environment and make Enfield 
a safer place by tackling all 
types of crime and anti-social 
behaviour.

Page 131



18 Customer Experience Strategy 2018-2022

APPENDIX 2: MATURITY MODEL

Bronze Silver

Level 1: 
Interested

Level 2: 
Invested

Gold

Level 3: 
Committed

Level 4: 
Engaged

Level 5: 
Embedded

1. Culture Audit 
completed 
– self 
assessment 
using the 
values.

2. Approach 
to staff 
development 
– values 
and skills – 
determined.

3. Customer 
maturity level 
determined.

4. Digital 
maturity level 
determined.

5. Customer 
Experience 
Strategy 
developed per 
service and 
corporately.

1. Customer 
Experience 
Strategy 
signed off and 
communicated 
across the 
Council.

2. Culture shift 
activities 
planned and 
communicated.

3. Behaviours 
framework in 
place for staff 
improvement.

4. Workshops 
developed 
to improve 
understanding 
of customer.

5. User needs 
workshops 
delivered to 
customer 
facing teams.

6. Measures 
determined 
to identify 
customer 
engagement 
and feedback.

1. Customer 
Experience 
Strategy used 
to determine 
interaction with 
customers.

2. Management 
support culture 
change.

3. Staff are 
measured on 
behaviours and 
self-regulation.

4. Staff and 
customer 
feedback 
used to plan 
Customer 
Experience.

5. Digital solutions 
are determined 
by user 
engagement.

6. Measures 
are used to 
determine 
business 
interventions.

1. Customer 
Experience 
Strategy 
deliverables are 
on track and 
communicated 
across council.

2. Culture change 
is underway 
and recognised 
by staff and 
customers 

3. Staff self-
regulate their 
own behaviour 
and that of their 
colleagues.

4. Feedback 
shows 
improvement 
in customer 
experience.

5. User centred 
design is the 
first point of 
determining 
new service.

6. Customer data 
is compiled, 
circulated and 
used.

7. Analytics are 
valued and 
understood.

1. Customer 
Experience 
strategy is 
realised as the 
way we work.

2. Culture is 
one of self-
regulation, 
expression 
of thought, 
collaborative 
working and 
Customer 
Experience 
centred service.

3. Staff are 
recognised and 
rewarded for 
outstanding 
Customer 
Experience.

4. Improvements 
can be 
measured 
from feedback 
and new ways 
of engaging 
customers 
create a co-
design model.

5. User needs 
and codesign 
drive service 
improvements.

6. Customer data 
drives service 
improvement.

7. Analytics allow 
service to 
customers to 
be predicted.

Page 132



Page 133



www.enfield.gov.uk

Page 134



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME 2018/19 

 
The Role of Scrutiny in Meeting the Public Sector Equality Duty 

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee has a key role to play in ensuring that the Council meets all the statutory duties under the Public Sector 

Equality Duty of the Equality Act 2010, particularly in ensuring that the authority has due regard to the needs of diverse groups when designing, 

evaluating and delivering services in order to – 

• eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct prohibited by the Act. 
• advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic and those who do not. 
• foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those who do not. 
 

In order to do this, the Overview and Scrutiny Committee will scrutinise the Council's Equality and Diversity Action Plan and Annual 

Achievement Report each year to monitor the Authority’s performance. The OS Committee will be flexible enough to pick up on issues of 

inequality, wherever they arise in the Council work programme, or to delegate to individual workstreams for investigation. OSC has a key role in 

providing a ‘critical friend’ challenge to the Council’s strategic equality objectives and scrutinising performance in delivering those objectives. 

In addition, as part of their normal work programme, each workstream will (where relevant and proportionate) - 

• request information about the equality impact assessments/analyses that have been undertaken whenever discussing proposals for 
new policies or future plans, or for current services, to inform their comments on those proposals or services 

• examine these assessments/analyses of impact in detail to check if they are robust and have been developed based on strong evidence 
and appropriate engagement 

• question and consider whether appropriate people have been involved and engaged in developing equality objectives and plans, and 
when assessing the impact of policies and proposals. 

• when procurement award criteria and contracts are determined, consider whether or not specific equality stipulations are required 
• Scrutiny may also wish to investigate the accessibility of equality and other published documents, asking questions such as – 

o what is done to promote these documents? 
o what languages or formats is the information available in? 
o which documents are most regularly required? 
o how aware are the public of the Authority’s equality plans and performance? 

 

P
age 135

A
genda Item

 9



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME 2018/19 

 
 

WORK 
 

12 June  
(Planning) 

12 July 
  

26th July 5 Sept  7 Nov  15 Jan 
 

12 Feb  03 April 

Date papers to be with 
Scrutiny Team 

 

 3
rd

 July 17
th

 July 24
th

 August 29 October 4 January 1 February 25 March 

Specific Topics:         

Leader/ Cabinet Member 
 
 

  Leader- 
discussion 
item 

Cabinet Member for 
Environment-  
Discussion item 
 

    

Meridian Water        Report  

Pre Decision scrutiny         

Genotin Road Carpark
  

Report        

Safeguarding Adults 
Strategy consultation 2018-
23 

 Report       

Homelessness Strategy     Report    

Customer Experience 
Strategy 

        

Budget     Report    

Housing Repairs and 
Maintenance 

        

Standing Items         

Children’s and Young 
People’s Issues 

   Monitoring Items: 

Fostering & 

Adoption/IRO/LADO

/ Annual LSCB 

report 

Children’s Social 

Care Self -

evaluation 

 Local Offer for 

Leaving Care 

Regional Adoption 

agency 

Annual Complaints 

Report for 

Children’s Social 

Care & Adult 

Social Care  

P
age 136



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME 2018/19 

 
WORK 

 

12 June  
(Planning) 

12 July 
  

26th July 5 Sept  7 Nov  15 Jan 
 

12 Feb  03 April 

Monitoring/Updates         

Scrutiny Involvement in  
Budget Consultation 18/19 

     Budget 
Meeting 

  

Safeguarding Annual 
Report - Adults Services 

    Report     

Speech & Language 
Therapy 

      Update on the 
scrutiny 
workstream 
recommendations 

 

Housing Repairs     Update report on 
Scrutiny 
Workstream 
recommendations 
and current 
performance on 
Housing Repairs 

   

Human Trafficking        Update on Scrutiny 
Workstream 
recommendations 

Annual Corporate 
Complaints Report 

       Report 

Customer Experience         

Work Programme         

Setting the Overview & 
Scrutiny Annual Work 
Programme 2018/19 

Agree Work 
Programme 
and discuss 
workstreams 

Finalise 
workstreams 

      

Selection of New 
Workstreams for 2018/19 

Discuss new 
Workstreams  

Finalise new 
workstreams 

      

 

Note: Provisional call-in dates: -    13
th

 September, 11
th  

October, 8th November, 6
th

  and 20
th

 December, 7
th

 February, 12
th

 and 26
th

 March, 11
th

 April. 

These dates may also be used for pre-decision scrutiny as necessary. 

 

                                            Please note that the above programme may be subject to change during the course of the year 

P
age 137



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 FOSTERING & ADOPTION SERVICES IN ENFIELD
	Adoption Service report 2017 to 2018
	Fostering Panel report 2017 to 2018

	5 ENFIELD SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN'S BOARD (ESCB) ANNUAL REPORT
	Draft summary of the ESCB annual report 2017-18
	Draft ESCB Annual Report 2017-18

	6 ENFIELD ANNUAL INDEPENDENT REVIEWING OFFICERS (IRO'S) REPORT 17/18
	IRO Annual Report 2017 - 2018

	7 ENFIELD ANNUAL LOCAL AUTHORITY DESIGNATED OFFICER (LADO) REPORT 17/18
	Lado report 2017 - 2018

	8 CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE STRATEGY
	Customer Experience Strategy document

	9 WORK PROGRAMME 2018/19

